NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACTIVITIES

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (“The Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at
38 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Bank, through its branches and subsidiaries, provides a range of
banking, financial and related services.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interests in associates.

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

New and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. None
of these developments have had a material effect on how the
group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. However, additional disclosure
has been included in note 35(c) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement
of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIS MY EE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEETBE®
(c) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (c) MR ENFERELE

70

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see Note

2(9));

- derivative financial instruments (see Note 2(g)); and

- owned properties (see Note 2(j)).

In addition, the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities carried at
amortised cost that are designated as hedged items in a fair value
hedge are adjusted for fair value changes attributable to the hedged
risk.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see
Note 2(k)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 45.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see
Note 2(n)).

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Bank has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

The investment in an associate in the Philippines is not equity
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as it is
considered by the directors to be immaterial to the Group. It is
stated at cost less impairment losses in the Group’s and the
Bank’s statement of financial position. The result of this associated
company is included in the Group’s and the Bank’s profit or loss to
the extent of dividends receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Interests in associates (continued)

The investment in an associate in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method. It is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s net identifiable assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of the associate’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment, if any
(see Notes 2(n)). The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the associate and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post tax items of the associate’s other comprehensive
income is recognised in the Group’s other comprehensive income.

If the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest would be reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. The Group’s interest in the associate is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associate, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in both
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see
Note 2(n)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see Note 2(n)). In respect of
associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the interest in associates and the investment
as a whole is tested for impairment whenever there is objective
evidence of impairment (see Note 2(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Financial instruments

(i) Initial recognition
The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale
financial assets and other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price, plus in case of a
financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of financial
liability. Transaction costs on financial assets and financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or
available-for-sale financial assets is recognised using trade
date accounting. From these dates, any gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities are recorded.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking. Derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting (Note 2(i)) are accounted for as trading
instruments.

Financial instruments are designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

- the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract; or

- the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative
the separation of which from the financial instrument is
clearly not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried
at fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Interest income, interest
expense and dividends from instruments in this category
are recorded in interest income, interest expense and other
operating income respectively. Upon disposal or repurchase,
the difference between the net sale proceeds or the net
payment and the carrying value is included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than (a) those that the Group intends to
sell immediately or in the near term, which will be classified
as held for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates at fair value through profit or loss or
as available-for-sale; or (c) those where the Group may not
recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than
because of credit deterioration, which will be classified as
available-for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise
advances to customers, placements with banks and other
financial institutions, and certain debt securities.

Debt securities classified as loans and receivables are not
quoted in an active market. Investment decisions for such
debt securities are subject to the same credit approval
processes as loans, and the Group bears the same customer
risk as it does for loans extended to those customers. These
debt securities include subordinated debt instruments and
senior debt instruments issued by borrowers.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less impairment losses, if any
(see Note 2(n)).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
which the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity, other than (a) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates at fair value through profit or loss or
as available-for-sale; and (b) those that meet the definition of
loans and receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less impairment
losses, if any (see Note 2(n)).

If, as a result of a change in intention or ability, it is no longer
appropriate to classify an investment as held-to-maturity, it is
reclassified as available-for-sale and remeasured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified in any of the other three categories above. They
include financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, but which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in the market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity, except for interest income,
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary items such as debt securities which are recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest rate method.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured, and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such equity instruments are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any (see Note 2(n)).

When available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains or
losses on disposal comprise the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated
fair value adjustments previously recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is ideally based on
their quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.
Financial assets are priced at current bid prices, while financial
liabilities are priced at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange, a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments
is used. If the market for a financial instrument is not active,
the fair value of the instrument is estimated using a valuation
technique that provides a reliable estimate of the price which
could be obtained in an actual market transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value measurement principles (continued)

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of
the reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar
terms and conditions. Where other pricing models are used,
inputs are based on market data at the end of the reporting
period.

(iv) Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(v) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vi) Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both a derivative and a
host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of
the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-
alone derivative. Embedded derivatives are separated
from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative
when (i) the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract; and (ii) the
hybrid (combined) instrument is not held at fair value through
profit or loss.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies
for the relevant financial instrument. The embedded derivative
is classified as a derivative financial instrument in the financial
statements.

(h) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreement) are retained in the financial statements and measured
in accordance with their original measurement principles. The
proceeds from the sale are reported as liabilities and are carried at
amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

(i)

(continued)

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse
repurchase agreements) are reported as receivables and are carried
at amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements is recognised as interest
income and interest expense respectively, over the life of each
agreement using the effective interest rate method.

Hedging

Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit or
loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instruments and
the hedged items. The Group assesses and documents whether
the financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items
attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis. Under HKAS 39 hedge accounting is classified
into three categories: (a) fair value hedges; (b) cash flow hedges
and (c) net investment hedges. The Group only applies hedge
accounting for fair value hedging of certain fixed rate available-for-
sale investments and certificates of deposit issued.

The Group discontinues prospectively hedge accounting when (a)
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised;
(b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting; or
(c) the Group revokes the designation.

(i) Fair value hedge
A fair value hedge seeks to offset risks of changes in the fair
value of recognised assets and liabilities that will give rise to a
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

The hedging instruments are measured at fair value, with
fair value changes recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of the hedged items are adjusted by the changes
in fair value attributable to the risk being hedged. These
adjustments are recognised in profit or loss to offset the effect
of gains or losses on the hedging instruments.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged
item for which the effective interest rate method is used, is
amortised to profit or loss as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

()]

Hedging (continued)

(i) Hedge effectiveness testing
In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries
out prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that
it expects the hedge to be highly effective at the inception
of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual effectiveness
(retrospective effectiveness) is also demonstrated on an
ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out
how the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method
which the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will
depend on its risk management strategy.

The Group utilises both cumulative dollar offset method and
regression analysis as the effectiveness testing methodologies
for retrospective testing. For prospective effectiveness, the
hedging instruments must be expected to be highly effective
in achieving offsetting changes in fair value attributable to
the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is
designated and is typically demonstrated through matching of
critical terms. For actual effectiveness, the hedging instrument
should demonstrate that it is highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risk. The
Group considers that where changes in fair value offset each
other in the range of 80 percent to 125 percent the hedge is
highly effective.

Property and equipment

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are held under leasehold
agreements and, in the absence of reliable information to allow
separation of the land and buildings components under the leases
the land and buildings are accounted for as properties.

These leasehold land and buildings are stated at their revalued
amount, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are performed
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties are generally
dealt with in other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the premises revaluation reserve. The only
exceptions are as follows:

= when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in the
reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to
profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()]

Property and equipment (continued)

Subsequent expenditure relating to a fixed asset that has already
been recognised is added to the carrying amount of the assets
when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing
asset, will flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of fixed
assets are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the premises revaluation
reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment using the straight line method over the
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no less than 2% per annum after the date of
completion.

- Furniture and equipment is generally depreciated over periods
of between three to ten years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Assets held for sale

An asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset is available for sale in its
present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the assets is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the financial statements of the Group are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits and financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures). These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in
profit or loss. As long as an asset is classified as held for sale, the
asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U

(m)

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of leased assets
Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as operating
leases.

(i) Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in the
statement of financial position as advances to customers.
Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance
leases are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy for impairment (see Note 2(n)).

(iii)  Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease terms, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be delivered from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregated net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Repossessed assets

During the recovery of impaired advances to customers, the Group
may take repossession of assets held as collateral through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers.
Where it is intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the
impaired assets and the Group is no longer seeking repayment
from the borrower, repossessed assets are reported in “Accrued
interest and other assets” and the relevant loans and advances are
derecognised. The Group does not hold repossessed assets for its
own use.

Repossessed assets are initially recorded at the lower of the
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less
costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not depreciated or
amortised.

Impairment losses on subsequent remeasurement are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gains on subsequent remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss subject to a cap at the amount of related
loans and advances at the date of exchange.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following loss events which has
an impact on the future cash flows of assets:

Financial assets:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

It becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

Significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
borrower;

Disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

Non-financial assets:

During the period, an asset’s market value has declined
significantly more than would be expected as a result of the
passage of time or normal use;

Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Group
have taken place during the period, or will take place in the
near future, in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment in which the Group operates or in the market to
which an asset is dedicated;

Evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of
an asset; or

Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Group have
taken place during the period, or are expected to take place in
the near future, impacting how an asset is used or is expected
to be used. These changes include the asset becoming idle,
plans to discontinue or restructure the operation to which
an asset belongs, plans to dispose of an asset before the
previously expected date, and reassessing the useful life of an
asset as finite rather than indefinite.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is generally
reduced to the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge
to profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets, the carrying
amount is reduced to the fair value.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
advances to customers, which are measured at amortised cost,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
advances to customers directly and corresponding amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that borrower are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

() Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets).
Receivables with a short duration are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances and collective
impairment allowance.

The Group first assesses whether any objective evidence
of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant and collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
then includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is or continues to be recognised are not included in any
collective assessment of impairment. Assets that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment
by grouping together financial assets with similar risk
characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(1)

Loans and receivables (continued)

Individual impairment allowances are based upon
management’s best estimate of the cash flows which are
expected to be received discounted at the original effective
interest rate. In estimating these cash flows management
makes judgments about the borrower’s financial situation
and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral or
guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its merits.

In assessing the need for a collective impairment allowance on
individually significant loans which are not impaired and assets
that are not individually significant, management considers
factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations,
and economic factors. In order to estimate the required
allowance the Group makes assumptions both to define the
way the Group models inherent losses and to determine the
required input parameters based on historical experience and
current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowance. While this necessarily
involves judgment, the Group believes that the impairment
allowances on advances to customers are reasonable and
supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates
that can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the write-down, will result in a change in the impairment
allowances on loans and receivables and be charged or
credited to profit or loss. A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the loans and receivables’ carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery the loan
and the related interest receivable are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Held-to-maturity investments

Impairment on held-to-maturity investments is considered
at both an individual and collective level. If impairment is
identified, the individual impairment allowance is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate, where the effect of
discounting is material.

All held-to-maturity investments found not to be individually
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment
that has been incurred but not yet identified.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of impairment losses shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Where there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative unrealised loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iv) Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following non-financial assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- furniture, fixtures and equipment;

- investments in subsidiaries and associates; and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Cash equivalents

(p)

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits include salaries, annual
bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits and are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement scheme

The Group’s net obligation in respect of its defined benefit
retirement scheme is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and the fair value of
any scheme assets is deducted. The calculation is performed
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the
scheme or reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
Service cost and net interest expense (income) on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised in profit or loss
as part of “Staff costs”. Current service cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from employee service in the current
period. When the benefits of a scheme are changed, or when
a scheme is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit
related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at
the earlier of when the scheme amendment or curtailment
occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination
benefits are recognised. Net interest expense (income) for
the period is determined by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability (asset).
The discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting
period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.
Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
schemes are recognised in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on scheme
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the effect of
the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and
all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements

therein, are presented separately from each other and are not

offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,

and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Bank

or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Bank or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the related current tax assets and settle the
related current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(1)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees
received) is initially recognised as deferred income within other
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(1)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The deferred income is amortised to profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. The carrying amount of the guarantee issued is
remeasured in accordance with Note 2(r)(ii) if and when:

(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee; and

(i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in other liabilities
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(1)

Interest income

Interest income from interest-bearing financial instruments
is recognised in profit or loss on an accruals basis using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income from trading
assets and financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised on basis of accrued coupon and is
recognised in net interest income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

(1)

(i)

(i)

Interest income (continued)

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, call and similar option) but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, together
with transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
Cash rebates granted in relation to residential mortgage
loans are capitalised and amortised to profit or loss over their
expected life.

Net income from financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss and net trading income

Net income from financial instruments designated as fair value
through profit or loss and net trading income comprise all
gains and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued
coupon) of such financial assets and financial liabilities, foreign
exchange differences and dividend income attributable to
those financial instruments.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services
provided by the Group including cash management services,
brokerage services, investment banking services, investment
management services and project and structured finance
transactions services. Fee and commission income is
recognised when the corresponding service is provided,
except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer or is
interest in nature. In these cases the fee is recognised as
income in the accounting period in which the costs or risk is
incurred or is accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received by the Group which
result in the creation or acquisition of a financial instrument
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate unless it is a trading asset or liability or a financial
asset designated at fair value through profit or loss. In this
case it is immediately recognised in profit or loss. If the
commitment expires without the Group making a loan, the fee
is recognised as revenue on expiry.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

(t)

(iv) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase
contracts
Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of return on the outstanding net investment in
the leases for each accounting period. Contingent rentals
receivable are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

(v) Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
as other operating income in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals receivable are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

(vi) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is irrevocably
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

The Group and the Bank’s functional currency is Hong Kong
Dollars. Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are dealt with in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

Exchange differences relating to financial instruments held at fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are
included in net income from financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss and net gain/(loss) on derivative financial
instruments, respectively. All other exchange differences relating to
monetary items are presented as gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies in profit or loss and are reported within “Other
operating income”. Differences arising on translation of available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities
are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity in the foreign
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

(u) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) aperson, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:
() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) an entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Related parties (continued)

(v)

(b) an entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

These consolidated financial statements cover the consolidated
positions of the Bank and all its subsidiaries unless otherwise stated
and the Group’s interest in associates. For information required to be
reported in accordance with the Banking (Disclosures) Rules, the basis
of consolidation is set out in Note (A) to Note (D) in the Unaudited
Supplementary Financial Information on pages 192 to 195.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE 4.

(@) Interest income

RITRERE S REE

Balances with banks and other financial

institutions EeR
Investment in securities BEHEEE
Loans and advances BERRER
Others Efth

Interest income recognised on financial assets that are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
HK$2,178,192,000 (2016: HK$1,908,905,000).

(b) Interest expense

Deposits from customers EPEX
Deposits and balances of banks and HRITRIZE R H & RS 2
other financial institutions TR AR

Financial assets sold under repurchase EopzENHEZERMEE
agreements

Certificates of deposit, debt securities and B Z/TERE - BEEEER
subordinated debts issued 1BIBERS

Others HAh

Interest expense recognised on financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
HK$957,117,000 (2016: HK$734,529,000).

BIRESRE e
MEWAR X
(a) FBWA
2017 2016
—g—tf e
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F FH
113,029 60,388
880,860 782,572
1,176,155 1,072,131
10,698 9,791
2,180,742 1,924,882

MIEBBESURBAFEEZERE
ERERZFBEWAE2,178,192,000 7T

—F X% : 1,908,905,000/# 7T ) ©

(b) FEZH

2017 2016
—E=—+tF AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHET
583,202 428,142
43,223 23,906
174,760 159,000
160,427 141,103
2,951 4,171
964,563 756,322

MIEBBESURBAFEBEZERA
BRERZFE X HAE957,117,0007% 7T

—FE— X : 734,529,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 5 BT 5
5. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE 5. BRARBEVRARTH
(a) Fee and commission income (@) BERARBERBA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FBT FAT
Fee and commission income arising from:  BLA N PAE AR E B RASUWA
Credit related services EEER 55,058 53,429
Trade finance services B OB 14,448 12,440
Credit card services ERRER 132,367 142,367
Securities brokerage and FEHAAD KA E RS
investment services 35,640 26,484
Insurance services IRBg 275 117,907 173,363
Unit trust services EAESER 45,903 39,680
Other fees Hib&H 14,663 13,251
415,986 461,014
Of which: Hreh o
Fee and commission income arising from:  BR &AW AKE :
— Financial assets or financial liabilities - JEimiBiE a A Rk
which are not measured at fair value N EEzEMEES
through profit or loss SRBaE 196,887 203,380
— Trust and other fiduciary activities - EREMEMZIEERS 1,664 1,487
Fee and commission income arising from trust and other fiduciary REGEREMEAEZNEARAS
activities relate to fees from asset management activities where the WA - BREERXEFPFHAEEESK
Group holds assets or invests on behalf of customers. BRTW R & E B IR B AR -
(b) Fee and commission expense (b) ERARAEXE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Handling fees and commission FEERAS 71,174 62,090
Other fees paid HivE2 N &8HA 26,444 34,792
97,618 96,3882
Of which: Hr -
Fee and commission expense arising from: EREMASLHKE :
- Financial assets or financial liabilities - JEIBIBIB AR B
which are not measured at fair value NEEEZSRE
through profit or loss BESERAE 93,555 93,844
96 Fubon Bank & #8R1T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRS MY EE
6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. HzEEWA
2017 2016
—E—tfF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Gains less losses from dealing RBWBREE
- Foreign exchange — HNE (52,014) (38,754)
- Trading assets -RHERXSRABEE 25,565 47,173
— Other dealing activities* -HhEERX S 10,341 14,464
— Short selling activities -BERS (396) 291
(16,504) 23,174
Net hedging (loss)/gain from fair value hedges 2 & &% 2 B¥h (FE),
Net loss on hedged items attributable to EL¥T R E bR AR R 2 R IE R 2
the hedged risk FEE (178,242) (264,694)
Net gain on hedging instruments T A2 F S 164,387 302,024
(13,855) 37,330
Net gain on financial instruments designated SEABEBIBHURMAFEE
at fair value through profit or loss ZEemTI Az F R
Revaluation gain on financial instruments EEARBERARMRATEE
designated at fair value through profit or loss 2RI Az EfHU 4,434 11,781
4,434 11,781
Revaluation loss on derivative financial instruments  $74 4 g T B~ &4 &8 (4,022) (54,709)
Dividend income from unlisted available-for-sale At EFE LTS FEE Y
financial assets I ON 16,624 24,058
Others Eifb 16,920 15,549
3,597 57,183
* Other dealing activities include customer-driven dealing in derivative 2 AEMEERX SEHEEFEEN AR T
financial instruments including equity linked notes, options and A AERZRGZE - BIERAEEF

structured deposit products.

2= o
FEdm °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 5 BT 5
7. OPERATING EXPENSES 7. EEXH
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—RFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Staff costs EBKA
Contributions to defined contribution scheme TE BB SRET B R 17,988 17,394
Current service cost of defined benefit scheme & 2818 Kl 52135 B IR TG A X
(Note 36(a)(v)) (MI7E36(a)(v)) 13,346 13,237
Retirement schemes costs BIRETEIK A 31,334 30,631
Salaries and other staff costs e REMEBKA 549,892 542,809
581,226 573,440
Premises and other fixed assets Y R E M EEEE
Rental of premises YRS 41,087 41,839
Depreciation (Note 23(a)) W& (K15E£23(a)) 133,081 127,006
Others Hith 20,456 27,398
Audit fee ZEHE A 4,026 3,293
Other operating expenses Hih i@
Business promotion ¥GHE 26,501 29,523
Legal and professional fees ERERER 5,316 22,537
Communication B 30,911 31,054
Electronic data processing and BETEREENEKESR
computer systems 55,657 57,852
Others Hih 52,232 42,966
950,493 956,908
8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEHM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong BIEEB(ATHEDYEI83(1) MR T (HE
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of ZEFRZER)EG) F2EWE 2 EEFHBN W
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows: T 8
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FE T FHT
Basic salaries and other allowances JER 37 B2 HL At 2 Bh 5,720 5,718
Directors’ fee E50E 4,732 4,971
Contributions to pension scheme RIRET IR 285 285
Discretionary bonuses BIBEIEAL 2,600 2,500
13,337 13,474
98 Fubon Bank & #8R1T



9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Impairment losses charged to advances to
customers (Note 18(b))
— Additions
— Releases

(Hf3E18(0))
- s
1

10. DILUTION LOSS ARISING FROM INVESTMENT IN AN
ASSOCIATE

As of 31 December 2016 the Group held an equity interest of 19.99% in
Xiamen Bank Co., Ltd (“XBCL") which is accounted for as an associated
company as the directors believe they have significant influence. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, XBCL completed two private
placements of additional share capital to a number of third parties,
thereby diluting the Group’s equity holding to 18.83% in June 2017
and 15.78% in September 2017. As a result, the Group recognized
dilution losses of HKD17,969,000 and HKD42,914,000 respectively in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, representing the
decrease in the Group’s share of net assets as a result of the dilution.

11. NET GAINS ON DISPOSAL OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMNG < RFPEFRERE

B RS ER M =
9. BEFEFRREEE

2017 2016

—EB—+tF —ENREF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHT

(109,716) (233,325)

41,887 9,034

(67,829) (224,291)

10. EBREQRANREMEENETER

R-ZE—ARE+-_A=1+—H0 FEEHEE
PIRITARD B IR AR ([EFIER1T ) 2 19.99%
B AREERABESHREMRITAFEKR
FEH AHUBEATAR RBEE_-T
—tF+-A=1+—HLLEE ' EFIRITK
MIEFLAB S UAMETE = FREEIMNMIAK -
AEBZEREAMR-_Z—tENAR-T
—tFNADREEE18.83% K% 15.78% °
It REERGEEEBERR D BIEREE
/&5#817,969,000% 7T ] 42,914,000 7T + 10
ERAEERSEEMEGEEEFEIRD

11. HETHHESREEF KRS

FINANCIAL ASSETS
2017 2016
—E=—+tF AN
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Realisation of revaluation surplus previously BERKESHREERNERZ
recognised in the investment revaluation BhEH 2 BH(H7F13)
reserve (Note 13) (233) 2,111
Net gain arising in the current year FRF = 1,543 51,501
1,310 53,612
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

12. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 12. FEZHKRBRANFAEH
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive (a) FEZTHWHEEKRAMBIIEA :
income represents:

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is calculated at 16.5% —E—F2BBNEHRBERETIREAR
(2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. FRZAAMERB RN 216.5%(=F
Taxation for overseas operations is similarly calculated using the —NF 16.5%)EHHE o BINEISTIER
estimated annual effective rates of taxation that are expected to SPEHEZEL - AERFEFEHEBRE
apply in the relevant countries. ROFEAERBRAH -
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax ENEARIIE - ERREH
Tax for the year FRTIE 89,450 59,768
Over-provision in respect of prior years BAFEBBEESR - (430)
89,450 59,338
Current tax - Overseas Tax BEABL1E - B MNBLIE
Tax for the year FRBIE 8,723 74
Deferred tax BB E
Origination and reversal of temporary ERMEZEEEAR
differences (Note 30(b)) &l (KsE30(b)) 11,908 14,315
110,081 73,727
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) HMEXHERBEAERRZETE
profit at applicable tax rates ZE2HEAE 2 Y8R
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FHET
Profit before taxation R 5 B 4 693,464 708,370
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BR T BT A 2 (G st R B IR LA
calculated at the rates applicable to 16.5% 2 FER B KT H
profits at 16.5% 114,422 116,881
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFERTIUMA 2 BB E (2,855) (12,321)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses FEATHR S 2 TR & 10,422 11,370
Tax effect of temporary differences HRATEFERER
not recognised in prior years TREERCHIBYE
now recognised - (16,500)
Effect on profit of an associate /NIy =2 (20,631) (25,777)
Overseas withholding taxes EINEIR 8,723 74
Actual tax expense BEEHEL L 110,081 73,727
100 Fubon Bank & #8R1T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 5 BT 5
13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 13. Hft2mEUW
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHHESREE :
Changes in fair value recognised during the year AEEHER 2 AT EEEZS) 518,946 60,296
Amounts transferred to profit or loss: EERSEG R
— net gains on disposals (Note 11) — SR HE Wk (FFE11) 233 2,111)
— impairment losses - BEEE - 404
Share of changes in fair value of available-for-  fE(5— B & QAT 2 AT HE
sale financial assets held by an associate CRIEEAFEEES (33,826) (66,147)
Deferred taxation (Note 30(b)) IEFER I8 (K1 7E30(b)) (85,453) (10,344)
Net movement in the investment revaluation REFREAM 2R EIER
reserve during the year recognised in other 2B B RE T
comprehensive income 399,900 (7,902)
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Premises: L E
Surplus on revaluation of premises (Note 23(a))  #2& {4 Kk (FiE23(a)) 356,489 39,262
Share of surplus on revaluation of premises G —fEEE R B 2 ME
of an associate EHARK 25,456 14,661
Deferred taxation (Note 30(b)) IEFERTE (K17E30(b)) (50,497) 1,943
Net movement in the premises revaluation REFEREMEEREERZ
reserve during the year recognised in other YEEMFHEETE
comprehensive income 331,448 55,866
2017 2016
—E—+tH T —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Defined benefit liability: EREEFNEE
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability BNt EERENAEFE
(Note 36(a)(v)) (FF&E36()(V)) (7,912) 22,828
Deferred taxation (Note 30(b)) HEIEFL B (MI3E30(0)) 1,305 (3,767)
Net movement in the defined benefit liability AEEREMEAKEERZ
during the year recognised in EREMNEEFE
other comprehensive income (6,607) 19,061
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

14. SEGMENT REPORTING 14, DEPE R

102

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s operating
segments which are the components of the Group about which separate
financial information is available and evaluated regularly by the Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance.

Operating segments

The Bank and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
banking and related financial services. Reportable segments of the Group
are set out below.

Retail Banking business comprises Consumer Finance activities including
credit card merchant acquiring, provision of credit card advances,
mortgage lending and other consumer lending and Wealth Management
services such as the sales and distribution of insurance products,
investment products and securities brokerage to wealth management
clients and provision of banking services to the mass market segment.

Institutional Banking comprises the Corporate Banking business, the
Commercial Banking business and the Financial Institutions business,
covering the provision of services including corporate lending, syndicated
loans, trade financing and deposits to large corporate, small and medium
enterprises in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Financial Markets mainly engages in the marketing of investment
products to non-bank enterprises; managing the Group’s investment
portfolio and trading foreign exchange and debt securities. Moreover, it
also manages the overall funding, liquidity and interest rate risk positions
arising from the banking activities of the Group.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of segmental analysis, the allocation of revenue reflects
the benefits of capital and other funding resources allocated to the
operating segments by way of internal capital allocation and fund transfer
pricing mechanisms. To reflect the benefit of joint efforts of two operating
segments on a third party fee-related transaction, operating income
derived from the transaction is split between the relevant operating
segments.

Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by the respective
operating segments. For consistency with internal management
reporting, there is no apportionment of central management overheads
and only wholly and directly attributable costs of support units are
charged to the respective operating segments. Rental charges at market
rates for usage of premises are reflected in “Operating Expenses” and
“Inter-segment Expenses” for the respective operating segments.

Segment assets mainly include advances to customers less impairment,
investment in securities and financial instruments, inter-bank placements,
current assets and premises attributable to the operating segments.

Segment liabilities mainly include deposits from customers, certificates of
deposit and debt securities issued, inter-bank borrowings, and accruals
attributable to the operating segments.

Fubon Bank = #4817

DEBEBDRBAEEOQE D HREL - NE
B2 D el nAEE 2 EE D - Rz
BEM AT RBE R HARITR AR R EEHE
752 PR TE HART A DARTE 2RMAT 2 B B R AT 4%
R o

R AR LN 3]
ne = JJ IZIB

AT REME A B2 EEBEBRRMRTRE
PSR ARTS - AKE W BIREL D ARE T 40
T o

TERTEBBIBHESREB LY EERR
% EREERREPRY ERREER
% BBEREMEERES  REBERAVEE
BEPRHEERDHRRER  REERM
8 A RAC IR A R R R 35 0 B R AR SR 1T AR
% o

EEREBRTEBEOERITEY - BHERT
EBREBMBBER  RERNEE LT EAE
ZARBEERBNEERFELEES  REE

ERTSIERERAFRTEEHEREE
m o AEBENREAS ERARINE RERZE
FHRFEE - BHh - HMERASEREE
AR BERTTRIGE L 2 R B 1 K = E

£z o
MEE BEEREE

BOMAM T 2 WaEmd D RRREKED
BB BBAMEARDEAE & TR SIE DK
ZEARREAME SR MR o &R ARI{E
RENHEE =77 N BWRARER 5 LB A
LNMEIZ B - AR S LPRELZ &
BRAESDEERBIEEDE -

&5

RADTRIASELE D 2 BEERAFE - B
BARERRE - PREZERTTH
B RAT2REEXUBRARSKLLE S HHNEK
HEFIER  EREEDR - FEEDH
ERME  EhEFEFZESRRNSEED
Mz [BEXH IR [BAIZHIA -

DHEBETEBESLLENBEEZTSETR
ME - BFRhEeRTARKRE  RITERM

DHABIEERBRRLENNRETPFR
EETFRE EERTEBRES  RITAXERE
R ERT R ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning profit
before taxation, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment lending), interest expense,
depreciation, amortisation, impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their operations.

Unallocated items mainly comprise the central management unit,
management of strategic investments, premises and property
management and other activities which cannot be reasonably allocated

to specific business segments.

14. o

HER =)
IE

Fﬂ‘ﬁ
\/A\DLIf
\

B ERE M

EERERB®

EDE B HORR TR AR A B RS
HEMDBER - BHES

CFIEXH HTE -
DEGEERFTIEIERE D HEE ©

BIRE
( F'_,j{ ﬁ/‘\

- REEE

AOEBE T BEFEHAEREMN - RIKIRE
B BFRMEEBUARHMAKESES R
R ERB AR

TEE o

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-E-tE+=-A=t-H

Reportable
Retail Institutional Financial Segments
Banking Banking Markets Total
FERT CLERBBRT SRS WRERIPLEE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TEx TEx TEx TEx
Net interest income FHEBA 409,042 414,923 391,203 1,215,168
Other operating income/(loss) from FENRRFEMLENA/(BB)
external customers 397,417 64,099 (65,911) 395,605
Fee and commission expense ERRMAEIH (82,363) (463) (10,117) (92,943)
Other operating income/(loss) HigERA / (B18) 315,054 63,636 (76,028) 302,662
Operating income = ON 724,096 478,559 315,175 1,517,830
Operating expenses BELH (375,660) (85,340) (59,599) (520,599)
Inter-segment expenses BABZL (66,761) (7,375) (2,658) (76,794)
Operating profit before gains and Rethies LR EEBRIE L EF
impairment losses 281,675 385,844 252,918 920,437
Impairment losses on advances to customers REETRESE (22,564) (45,265) - (67,829)
Impairment losses on other assets HEtEERERRE - (7,353) - (7,358)
Net gains on disposal of avallable-for-sale HETHREESRAEFME
financial assets - - 1,310 1,310
Profit before taxation FRAR TR A 259,111 333,226 254,228 846,565
Operating expenses - depreciation HELTH-TE (21,081) (1,122) (2,852) (25,005)
Segment assets AHEE 23,289,235 28,484,915 41,946,270 93,720,420
Segment liabilities KAk 44,857,622 17,235,205 20,033,539 82,126,366
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIS MY EE
14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 14. 7EER (=)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) DEEE  BEREE®
For the year ended 31 December 2016
2T Ft-A=1+-A
Reportable
Retalil Institutional Financial Segments
Banking Banking Markets Total
TERT CLEREEES cRmS ARG HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
Net interest income FRSMA 398,306 409,846 359,339 1,167,491
Other operating income from external customers  BENAEF H i LEWA 456,415 12,455 18,743 487,613
Fee and commission expense ERRMAEIH (82,730) (670) (9,273) (92,673)
Other operating income k1 ON 373,685 11,785 9,470 394,940
Operating income BERA 771,991 421,631 368,809 1,562,431
Operating expenses LELH (389,042) (85,376) (60,630) (535,048)
Inter-segment expenses S (66,727) (7,104) (2,536) (76,367)
Operating profit before gains and impairment losses &tz Rl E B EATE &% H 316,222 329,151 305,643 951,016
Impairment losses on advances to customers REEHRESE (55,343) (170,846) = (226,189)
Write back of impairment losses on HEESREERERR
available-for-sale financial assets 2B = = 30,834 30,834
Impairment losses on other assets HEEERERE = (1,055) - (1,069)
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHHLESHEEF NS
financial assets = = 5,544 5,544
Profit before taxation FRA TR A 260,879 157,250 342,021 760,150
Operating expenses - depreciation EELH-TE (17,230) (1,897) (2,158) (21,285)
Segment assets PHEE 23,585,544 22,916,357 45,228,269 91,730,170
Segment liabilities KAk 46,272,846 17,035,032 19,367,602 82,675,480
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. TEER (2
AERBSBEE BFNREE - BE

Reconciliation of Reportable Segment Revenue, Profit &

Loss, Assets & Liabilities

Revenues

Reportable segment operating income
Elimination of inter-segment operating income
Unallocated revenue

Consolidated operating income

Profit before taxation

Reportable segment profit before taxation

Unallocated operating income

Unallocated operating expenses

Write back of impairment losses on
advances to customers

Impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial assets

Write back of/(charge for) impairment losses on
assets held for sale

Write back of impairment losses on other assets

Write back of impairment losses on assets
acquired under lending agreements

Share of profits of an associate

Dilution loss arising from investment in an
associate

Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets

Consolidated profit before taxation

FEaBEzHER

B ERE M

For the year ended

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
BE=-Z2—tH& HE_ZT—XF
+=A=+—H +—A=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FHT
&
AR HBEE WA 1,517,830 1,562,431
B I B A EH (105,350) (102,573)
Ko 125,664 130,017
A EERA 1,538,144 1,689,875
For the year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BE-ZE—tF HE-_ZT— %
+=—BA=+—H +=-—RA=+—H
IHFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
BB AR R
A ¥R 5 EBBR B A Vg A 846,565 760,150
RofeEERA 125,664 130,017
ROBLEEX L (458,450) (448,066)
BEEFUREEE 2 B
- 1,898
AP EeREERERER
(1,286) (6,685)
RIEHECAERBERBIEZ
B, (F0kR) 1,200 (2,600)
Eim%“éifi@éﬂ%Z@% 1,800 =
BEERBREAEEERERE
PAEIE: 1,700 300
FEAGESE & A RLEF 237,103 225,308
EBE N RRIREREER
BEEE (60,883) =
EEMHEESmEEFRE
- 48,068
e EEEEF R (EE) 51 (20)
AR ALRT 693,464 708,370
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

106

Reconciliation of Reportable Segment Revenue, Profit &
Loss, Assets & Liabilities (continued)

AERBSBEE BFNREE - BE

As at

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R-Z—t%F RZZE—RF
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHAT

Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AR BEE 93,720,420 91,730,170
Unallocated fixed assets AOBRETEE 1,682,242 1,422,876
Interests in associates i NI 2,390,809 2,129,493
Unallocated other assets AOBREMEE 690,731 365,129
Consolidated total assets e EELTE 98,484,202 95,647,668

As at

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
R=Z—tF RZZE—RF
t=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities AIERRHBEE 82,126,366 82,675,480
Unallocated other liabilities AR EME E 1,989,536 1,599,554
Consolidated total liabilities NS NERERE 84,115,902 84,275,034

Geographical information

Geographical segment information is based on the locations of the
principal operations of the subsidiaries or on the location of the branches
of the Bank responsible for reporting the results or booking the assets,
the location of customers and the location of assets. For the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016, all of the Group’s operating income and
profit before taxation were generated by assets booked by the branches
and subsidiaries of the Bank located in Hong Kong. Except for the share
of profits from an associate in Mainland China, no single country or
geographic segment other than Hong Kong contributes 10% or more
of the Group’s assets, liabilities, profit or loss before taxation, total
operating income or contingent liabilities and commitments.

Major Customers

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no single customer or
a group of customers under common control contributes 10% or more of
the Group’s revenues.

Fubon Bank = #4817

EEHER

B ERRIRBHIBARZ EBEEBMEM
2 NIRAEREEEIBEEARZATS
TE BPUBREEMNE THUAEE - 52
R EFRCEFE-RFTA=T—HIESF
B AEBEZ A EERA KR NSFER
R RBEBNRITHITRMBARIARZBE
FREEE » B E(G — AR B Ak By B & A )
AN o WA AN Z (B Bl B R =k & 13 7
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15.

16.

17.

CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

Cash in hand

Balances with the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA”)

Balances with banks

Money at call and short notice *

B

RITRIRZ R
VEVISESEIEE

* Money at call and short notice represents deposits of up to a maximum
of one month maturity from the end of the reporting period.

TRADING ASSETS

Trading assets at fair value
Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills)
— Unlisted o, Al
Trading assets are issued by:
— Governments and central banks

- BT B b RERTT

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The sale to customers of derivatives as risk management products and
the subsequent use of derivatives to manage the resulting positions is
an integral part of the Group’s business activities. Derivatives are also
used to manage the Group’s own exposures to market risk as part of
its asset and liability management process. The principal derivative
instruments used by the Group are interest and foreign exchange rate
related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter derivatives. The
Group also purchases exchange traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s
derivative positions have been entered into to meet customer demand
and to hedge these and other trading positions or for balance sheet
management. For accounting purposes, derivatives are classified as
either held for trading, qualifying for hedge accounting, or managed in
conjunction with financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEREER(TEER] AR

B R o B T
15. REREHNES

2017 2016
—B—tF TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTERT TR
116,755 112,260
40,221 1,092,433
832,211 552,853
4,144,347 4,262,068
5,133,534 6,019,614

< BMREHEREE WS BRERE—
18,5 58,2 725 -

16. FEXZAREE

B FEESRZIFERZHEEE
HES(BENNERSRR)

FHER S S EER U FRIBET

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FT
1,846,823 2,310,246
1,846,823 2,310,246

17. fFESMIA
AEFHETETAMESREREEERRE
BRERMETAEEARSE  AAKEES
—IRER - TETATRANEERAREMAT
MTIZER  FRREERBREEMRZF —F
oo REBMEANITETAEZERFE R
EREGH  ZZANEZRGIMIETA -
FEETEERSAEEITETA - AKEAX
BOWTETARAARBEATFFLARS
HHRENEMRHEERRNEEEEAEBRM
RN - BERTEMME - STET AR BERE
ERZRE  ABBRRBENGHEAKEET
BBREARBRAFEEZ SR T AXRET
g -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIS MY EE
17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 17. TTE ST B a)
(a) Notional amounts of derivatives (@) fTEIEZEESH

WEMETAREBEERT —BAZA
FHREESRBZEENEZERE
B METAZEZESHEBETNRES
RAHRFAEZRSE  MAIFRRS R
R ATRAEEFIZEER
MATAETAZRRTBR MR

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period and do not
represent amounts at risk. The following is a summary of the
notional amounts of each significant type of derivatives entered into
by the Group:

2017
ZB-tF

Managed in
conjunction
with financial
instruments

Qualifying for designated at fair

hedge value through Held for
accounting profit or loss trading Total
RETABBER
URMATEE
RERFA ZEMIE
Hwaiti HEETER BERZRRE ok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TEn TEr TEx TEr
Exchange rate derivatives EETETE
- Forwards - & - - 5,513,848 5,513,848
- Swaps )i - - 12,490,958 12,490,958
- Options purchased - AR - - 678,161 678,161
- Options written - hi g - - 678,161 678,161
- - 19,361,128 19,361,128
Interest rate derivatives F=EHTETA
- Swaps - {5t 14,914,212 - 4,220,143 19,134,355
14,914,212 - 4,220,143 19,134,355
Equity derivatives BRETETR
- Options purchased - B - - 21,866 21,866
— Options written - hILEE - - 21,866 21,866
- - 43,732 43,732
Total k] 14,914,212 - 23,625,003 38,539,215
108 Fubon Bank & #8R1T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR E MRt
17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 17. FTE ST A
(a) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued) (@) PTEIEZERZ=SHE W)
2016
ZTRE
Managed in
conjunction
with financial
instruments
Qualifying for  designated at fair
hedge value through Held for
accounting profit or loss trading Total
HETABARR
NRBEATEE
BEREA ZERTA
E2pkE HEARITER BER SRR Ft]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
Exchange rate derivatives EXfTATA
- Forwards - B = = 9,187,367 9,187,367
- Swaps -5 = = 14,699,440 14,699,440
- Options purchased - BARE - - 759,505 759,505
- Options written - hIHEE - - 759,505 759,505
- - 25,405,817 25,405,817
Interest rate derivatives F=EHTETA
- Swaps )i 12,115,632 397,588 5,958,244 18,471,364
12,115,532 397,588 5,958,244 18,471,364
Equity derivatives BRETETR
- Options purchased - B AHE - - 21,076 21,076
- Options written - hii e - - 21,076 21,076
- - 42,152 42,152
Total k] 12,115,632 397,588 31,406,213 43,919,333
The above amounts are shown on a gross basis without taking into Tt S EARRERA R 0 W ER R TR E
account the effect of any bilateral netting arrangements. BRAAETE T E
Derivatives reported as qualifying for hedge accounting represent WEABAEREBYE RS EAZTAET
hedging instruments designated as hedges under HKAS 39. BREREBEESB S ERIEI05IETE Y

Mz EH TR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIS MY EE
17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 17. STE£@ T B
(b) Fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of (b) TEITEZLAFEBEREERR
derivatives In#E£ %8
Credit risk-weighted amount refers to the amount as computed EERBNESEREEETSGRITER
in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong FIYE TN ZRITE(BRN)RADAE S
Banking Ordinance. The amount depends on the status of the o NESHEARIRSHFZIRAL
counterparty and the maturity characteristics. The risk weights used S EARFBA T o FTERA Z 5 B R B hn g
range from 0% to 100%. LR F0%ZE100% ©
These amounts are shown on a gross basis without taking into ZECHWEN NERFHEE T2
account the effect of bilateral netting arrangements and are as REPN BN ¢
below:
2017 2016
it St o3 —ERF
Credit risk Credit risk
Fair value  Fair value weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
AVEE AVEE FERR ATEE AYEE FERR
BE faff mESE BE =0 mEeE

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET TET TET

Exchange rate derivatives ~ EXR{T4T A

- Forwards - R 473,436 19,915 26,428 540,813 150,356 136,285
- Swaps -8 7,945 62,483 27,003 17,150 1,824 37,443
- Options purchased - BEAEE 762 - 6,283 28,862 = 33,026
- Options written it - 762 - = 28,862 =
482,143 83,160 59,714 586,825 181,042 206,754

Interest rate derivatives FEFTETA
- Swaps - =8 222,589 144,623 108,983 166,303 262,556 113,424

222,589 144,623 108,983 166,303 262,556 118,424

Equity derivatives BRETETA
- Options purchased YN 433 - - 116 = =
- Options written - v B - 433 - - 116 =
433 433 - 116 116 -
Total ek 705,165 228,216 168,697 753,244 443,714 320,178
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 17. STEERTI A

(c) Fair values of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments

Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps that are used to
protect against changes in the fair value of certain of the Bank’s
certificates of deposit issued and fixed-rate debt securities held due
to movements in market interest rates.

The following is a summary of the fair values of derivatives held for

B R MY
(c) EEERYHPTRZITETAZ
NEE
R FEEL

AT B E 5B EREE FATE
BUHERE RS EBERETS
HELBMLR 2 A FEESEHFIE

1=H]

AEBFZZFHEEHMEMNZITET A

hedging purposes entered into by the Group: ZAFEEBEELNT -
2017 2016

Pl of -3 —E—RF
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
ATEE AFEE NFEE NEEE
BE =1 BE =4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx TER FAEL FAT
Interest rate derivatives FRFTET R 209,902 131,936 152,217 252,492

(d) Remaining life of derivative instruments

The following table provides an analysis of the notional amounts of
derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period.

(d) PTAETEZRERHR

TERAKE  BRBEPRKEAER
Yokl e BARR 2 AR R B BRAR R B 5 2 6T &
TRZESEODMN

Notional amounts with remaining life of

BUATHSREH 2 E5SE
Over
1 year 1 year to Over
Total or less 5 years 5 years
BE —FHUT —FULERF AFEHNE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2017 —E—tF TET TER TERT TERT
Exchange rate derivatives ERFTETA 19,361,128 18,998,612 362,516 -
Interest rate derivatives MEATHETA 19,134,355 1,330,361 14,500,721 3,303,273
Equity derivatives BREMETR 43,732 43,732 - -
Total ek 38,539,215 20,372,705 14,863,237 3,303,273
Notional amounts with remaining life of
BUTRHSRFH A5 eE
Over
1 year 1 year to Over
Total or less 5 years 5 years
ek —FgUT —FUELEERF RFNRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2016 —T-RF T FTAET TAEL FAET
Exchange rate derivatives [ER{TETA 25,405,817 25,199,547 206,270 -
Interest rate derivatives FIRFTETA 18,471,364 2,078,643 11,281,948 5,110,773
Equity derivatives BREITAETA 42,152 42,152 = =
Total k) 43,919,333 27,320,342 11,488,218 5,110,773
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS LESS IMPAIRMENT 18. EF EFURREERE
ALLOWANCES
(a) Advances to customers less impairment allowances: (a) BEFERRRERE :
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Gross advances to customers BEEXEEE 47,872,348 43,577,597
Less: Impairment allowances R E R
— Individual impairment allowances - [ERE AR (MEE18(b))
(Note 18(0)) (155,963) (149,919)
— Collective impairment allowance - fR B IR EREE (FIEE18(0))
(Note 18(b)) (133,068) (108,839)
47,583,317 43,318,839
(b) Movement in impairment allowances on advances to (b) EFERBEREEZE :
customers:

Individual Collective
impairment impairment
allowances allowance

B B BB FEBERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx
At 1 January 2017 R-ZF—+F—H—H 149,919 108,839
Impairment losses charged RBEENGR 2 REEBE(HF9)
to profit or loss (Note 9) 85,487 24,229
Impairment losses released back RiBa AR E 2R EEE (M)
to profit or loss (Note 9) (41,887) -
Amounts written off AR (45,516) -
Recoveries of advances written off BE ¢FEWHEE A2 W E
in previous years 7,960 -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=_A=+—H
(Note 18(a)) (Ht3E18(a)) 155,063 133,068
Individual Collective
impairment impairment
allowances allowance
18 511730 B 8 s A RERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
At 1 January 2016 R=ZZE—X~"F—HA—H 34,470 40,930
Impairment losses charged RiBa= R 2R EEE (M)
to profit or loss (Note 9) 165,315 68,010
Impairment losses released back RE R BR B 2 R (B 518 (FTEE9)
to profit or loss (Note 9) (8,933) (101)
Amounts written off WERES 58 (46,644) -
Recoveries of advances written off BEAFEEMEER 2D
in previous years 5,711 -
At 31 December 2016 RZE—ARFE+ZA=+—H
(Note 18(a)) (HiEE18(a)) 149,919 108,839

112 Fubon Bank = #4817




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 5 BT 5
18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS LESS IMPAIRMENT 18. EFEFUBRERE 9@
ALLOWANCES (continued)
(c) Advances to customers analysed by industry sector (c) MITEDPENEFER
The following economic sector analysis of gross advances to NTREERBRBENCETESTE
customers is based on the categories and definitions used by the REERAERANERNIRER °
HKMA.
As at 31 December
R+=-—H=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Gross advances for use in Hong Kong EEBERNERERE
Industrial, commercial and financial IHEERE
- Property development - MEER 3,542,760 3,756,167
— Property investment - MEKE 8,461,107 9,852,120
— Financial concerns - SR 3,616,993 1,346,366
— Stockbrokers - IR EL A 2,132,447 1,561,154
— Wholesale and retail trade - R TEE 409,307 342,228
— Manufacturing — RUyEE 1,171,559 1,244,842
- Transport and transport equipment — B MBI R 113,231 311,083
— Information technology - ARl 557,166 377,867
— Others - HAith 2,923,223 2,419,133
Individuals A
— Loans for the purchase of flats under -BE[EEHEEE] -
the Home Ownership Scheme, Private [FAAZZEEEE R
Sector Participation Scheme and [MHEBHEEHESE
Tenants Purchase Scheme or their Mg EFENEFHER
respective successor schemes 5,705 12,135
— Loans for the purchase of other -BEHMEFEMENER
residential properties 9,867,406 9,663,115
— Credit card advances - EARER 964,430 1,070,172
— Others - Hith 4,642,525 4,665,215
38,407,859 36,621,597
Trade finance B IrE 4,203,281 3,294,463
Gross advances for use outside Hong Kong £ & A SME A B B 5k 4858 5,261,208 3,661,537
Gross advances to customers EFERBEE 47,872,348 43,577,597
(d) Impaired advances to customers (d) EEBEER
2017 % of gross 2016 % of gross
—E—tE advances —E—RF advances
HK$’000 LEREE HK$'000 HEHBE
THERx BOL FTAT Bok
Gross impaired advances EE R A% 187,304 0.39 334,282 0.77
Individual impairment allowances MIBEEREHHER
made against impaired loans HERE (155,963) (149,919)
31,341 184,363
Amount of collateral held in BREEFFENERR
respect of impaired loans -} 31,521 122,717
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS LESS IMPAIRMENT
ALLOWANCES (continued)

(d)

Impaired advances to customers (continued)

Collateral mainly comprises mortgage interests over residential
properties with the Group. It does not include any expected
recovery from companies in liquidation and government guarantee
schemes.

Impaired advances are individually assessed loans with objective
evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase
contracts

Advances to customers include the net investment in motor
vehicles and equipment leased to customers under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance
leases. The contracts usually run for an initial period of 3 to 5 years,
with an option for acquiring the leased asset at nominal value. The
total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts and their present values at the year end are
as follows:

18. EF EFRRERE )

(d)

(e)

Total minimum lease payments due:
— within 1 year
— after 1 year but within 5 years
— after 5 years

Interest income relating to future periods

Present value of the minimum
lease payments receivable

Collective impairment allowance

Individual impairment allowances

Net investment in finance leases
and hire purchase contracts

REEEEFTACEINAHRE
- —FUA
- —FLMRMERF AR
- AFAR

BEROREAR B B2 A S A
U SEREERZRE

RARERE
ERIRER

MEHSMEBENZ
REFE

The maturity profile of the present value of the minimum lease
payments before impairment allowances is as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years
After 5 years

Fubon Bank = #4817

—E AR
—FABERF AR
AEE

EFEREER@®

ERmEZEEAKREEZENENR
B BRI EREAEHAFERAAR
BUR R Bl @& o

BEE TR E R EE A E BT ERR
ERE T mAEERFEOER

MEHEREBSN 2 REFH

BTEPZERBRREREMERA
MEEEFUE 2 HBEOETERZA
ERREOREFE AN ROEH
H==hF WEREREEBEMRE
REEZEE%E - REREHERER
BHRKRzZEHEERESBERRNE
BAZBAEWT

2017 2016
—=—+tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
1,295 1,963
4,085 5,908
3,396 5,433
8,776 13,304
(804) (1,319)
7,972 11,985
7,972 11,985

BEREIREREENEE 2 ARA
Rl

2017 2016
—g—t= —
HK$’000 HK$'000
i Tt
1,119 1,693
3,632 5,202
3,221 5,090
7,972 11,985




19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value
Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills)
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— Unlisted
Certificates of deposit held
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— Unlisted
Debt securities
— Listed in Hong Kong
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— Unlisted
Equity securities
— Listed in Hong Kong
— Unlisted

Available-for-sale financial assets are issued by:

— Governments and central banks
— Public sector entities

— Banks

— Corporate entities

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 5 BT 5
19. i HESREE
2017 2016
—B—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHT
BRTEESRZ AR EMEE
HEH(BEINEESZR)
- REBLASN ETH 15,034 14,860
-3k 1,009,487 1,847,605
FTis1E sk 8
- REBLASN ETH 571,764 128,614
-3k 1,067,754 1,750,266
BBES
-REBEM 9,397,485 7,329,307
- REBLASN ETH 15,378,966 12,208,778
-3k 4,258,761 7,612,507
-RBEBLEM 69 60
-3k k™ 544,340 232,548
32,243,660 31,124,545
AR E S A E R TEIBET -
— BUT KA R ERTT 1,963,013 2,906,189
- NEHE 656,408 627,794
- iR17 14,453,996 16,937,492
-EERE 15,170,243 10,653,070
32,243,660 31,124,545

As at 31 December 2017, debt securities issued by banks include debt
securities with fair value of HK$2,014.7 million (2016: HK$1,353.3 million)
issued by multilateral development banks. As at 31 December 2017, the
fair value of debt securities guaranteed by governments was HK$1,361.5

million (2016: HK$925.3 million).

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s available-for-sale equity
securities with a fair value of HK$30.7 million (2016: HK$40.9 million)
were individually determined to be impaired on the basis of a significant
or prolonged decline in fair value below cost. Impairment losses on these
investments of HK$1.3 million (2016: HK$6.7 million) were recognised in

profit or loss during the year.

M-ZT—t&E+-_A=+—0  BRITEEL
THEBESFBE A TEER2,014,700,000
BT (= F — 74 ¢ 1,353,300,0007 7T ) B
ZRERBAOBITNEEES - KT —+
F+-ZA=1+—8 BEEREBEHFNA
F{E{E A&1,361,500,0008 0 (=T — /< F :
925,300,000/ 7T) ©

R-ZT—+E+_A=+—8 A&EEET
A BB A30,700,000 L ( — T — XN F
40,900,000/ 70 ) AT H ER A BHEAE A
BB AR 3k = HAE P RS 45 1 B SE 430
B FAN - ZFEEKRMEEIE1,300,0007%
TL(—Z—7N4 : 6,700,000 7T ) E A BEH
MR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

20. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investments
at amortised cost

Debt securities
— Listed in Hong Kong
— Listed outside Hong Kong
— Unlisted

Certificates of deposit
— Unlisted

Held-to-maturity investments are issued by:
— Banks
— Corporate entities

Fair value of held-to-maturity investments:
— Listed securities
— Unlisted securities

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Advances

Share of net assets
Goodwill

Less: Impairment allowance on unlisted shares
Impairment allowance for advances to an
associate

116 Fubon Bank = #4817

20. FEIHRE

2017 2016
—Z—tF —ERF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHxT FHET
IR A DI BR 2 5 2 B B 1R &
B%ES
-REBE LM 77,268 76,412
- REBI LT 273,536 271,524
-JELm 1,054,735 1,046,858
TFRE
-JELm 156,257 155,090
1,561,796 1,549,884
F 2B E A T2 E T -
- R1T 1,484,528 1,473,472
-tEER 77,268 76,412
1,561,796 1,549,884
FFRFBIRE C AN FEHE -
- LmESH 365,910 366,027
- JE LR 1,251,588 1,249,615
1,617,498 1,615,642
21. REEE DT 2 S
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
EEMRRG - RKAE 10,394 10,394
BR - 2,038
BIEEEFE 2,338,559 2,063,311
[EES 52,250 66,182
2,401,203 2,141,925
B FE LR 2R E R (10,394) (10,394)
H—REBE AR ERZRIERE
- (2,038)
2,390,809 2,129,493




21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The associates of the Bank, all of which are unlisted corporate entities,
whose market price is not available, are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERE M

21. REEE QAT 2R )

AOTZBERR(ORFELTEXEREE
FEREEFHHE)WT

Form of Place of Particulars of  Proportion of
business incorporation issued and ownership Principal
Name of associate structure and operation paid up capital interest activities
SR AR 3L BRITRAR
BENRAR EBBRER EEHE ZRAHE  EEEZLA FTER
Xiamen Bank Co., Ltd (“XBCL") Incorporated The People’s 2,375,215,099 15.78% Provision of
EFRTRAERAR(TEMRT)) AL Republic of China ordinary shares banking and related
iz N REFE of RMB1 each finance services
2,375,215,0990% (Note i)
SREE REETR
ARBIT HES RS
& BR (Pt &Ei)
IBA Finance Corporation (“IBAFI”) Incorporated The Philippines 50,000,000 40.00% Provision of
IBA Finance Corporation([1BAFI]) Eallijpava JEER ordinary shares financing and

All the Group’s effective interest over the associates are held by the Bank

directly.

of PHP1 each
50,000,0008%
SREEFEE
BRI ER

leasing services
(Note ii)
TRBEI TS AR B IR
(FrfsEi)

AEENBERRINAEERESAANTTERER

A e

Note i: XBCL is an authorised institution incorporated in the PRC. The Bank
is entitled to appoint two directors, including one Executive Director,
to the board of XBCL which comprises thirteen directors. In view
of the Bank’s shareholding and representation on the Board of
Directors, XBCL is accounted for as an associated company as the
directors believe they have significant influence.

Note ii: IBAFI is a financing company incorporated in the Philippines. The
Group has not equity accounted for the investments in IBAFI in view
of the immaterial amount involved.

B et

Bt atii:

B PIIRTT AR o B S 1l B S B JE R A
B ATERZEMUES (B8 L
WITES) MAEMRTHESZS (&
T=ERAEK) - ENAITARRE
EREEFENRERAB EERAESF
EBSAFEN  FAWEMRITERS—
DL ANCIVN:

IBAFIRSNIFREEMKIMBIE R ©

MRS Rz BB TRE  AEEY
AR NBAFIZ AR B FIABRIA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. REEE QAT 2R )

—RERBERRZMBENMZ(ERER
B2 A ZRELFHER B MEHRESR
FREESRR) WERT

Summarised financial information of a material associate, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:

Xiamen Bank Co., Ltd

118

ERRITRBERA A
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Gross amounts of the associates’ BN AR 48R
Total assets BEE 255,873,045 211,253,226
Total liabilities wamE 240,759,068 200,664,383
Equity % 15,113,977 10,588,843
Revenue Wzt 5,212,349 4,391,121
Profit from continuing operations SR TS T 1,309,844 1,128,549
Post-tax profit or loss from discontinued operation B 4% |F 484 £ &G T g8 - =
Other comprehensive income Hih 2w (237,458) (191,910)
Total comprehensive income EER B 1,072,386 936,639
Dividend received from the associate g B B A RO RR B 86,278 -
Reconciled to the Group’s interests BN 5 B ARG N B 2 RERS VR BR
in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate B N e FEEBR 15,113,977 10,588,843
Non-controlling interests IR 2 (296,049) (267,125)
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate BENRREELT 14,817,928 10,321,718
Group’s effective interest AEEERER 15.78% 19.99%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate AEBB(INHBENRFEE 2,338,559 2,063,311
Goodwill FEE 52,250 66,182
Carrying amount in the consolidated KRB BEREFHERAE
financial statements 2,390,809 2,129,493

Fubon Bank = #4817




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22,

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class

of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

22. HERAARE

UTHEERREIBFEAKEES  EEXK
BENMBRRNFE - REEHAEIN -

FrAD 2R RIS A E R

Particulars of

Proportion of

B ERE M

issued and ownership
Name of Company paid up capital interest  Principal activities
BRTRME
NRER Rz F#E BREEAL EFEER
Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong & B ML K& EE
Fubon Credit (Hong Kong) Limited BRUE(EB)ERAA HK$65,000,000 100%  Provision of financing
65,000,000/ 7T services
RIS AR TS
FB Securities (Hong Kong) Limited BREF(BB)ERAH HK$8,000,000 100%  Securities broking
8,000,000/ 7T BHLL
FB Investment Management Limited ERREEBEERDA HK$8,000,000 100%  Fund management
8,000,000/ 7T HEER
Fubon Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited Fubon Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited HK$200 100%  Nominee service
20078 7T RIEAPRTS
Fubon Insurance Brokers Limited EARBEREAR DA HK$100,000 100%  Insurance broker
100,000/ 7T services
RBRELE AR

All of the above subsidiaries are directly owned by the Bank.

FB LK B AR R ATTERES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERE T

23. FIXED ASSETS 23. EEEE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREIEEER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Premises equipment Total
&R KB
L/ ERE #azE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET
Cost or valuation BB E
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—+F—H—H 3,482,333 815,605 4,297,938
Additions NE - 106,549 106,549
Disposals He - (8,870) (8,870)
Surplus on revaluation (Note 13) EHAHK(KMFE13) 356,489 - 356,489
Elimination of accumulated WEHEHMEZ
depreciation on revalued premises REtine (61,189) - (61,189)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-_A=+—H 3,777,633 913,284 4,690,917
Representing: (AVE
Cost &N - 913,284 913,284
Valuation — 2017 HE-=F—tF 3,777,633 - 3,777,633
3,777,633 913,284 4,690,917
Accumulated depreciation ESeis
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—HF—H - 511,811 511,811
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRFTE (FIeE7) 61,189 71,892 133,081
Released on disposal H & B (o] - (8,839) (8,839)
Elimination of accumulated EIHE-MEZ
depreciation on revalued premises E2xtinE (61,189) - (61,189)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-A=+—H - 574,864 574,864
Accumulated impairment loss RItWERE
At 1 January and 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F—HF—8AK&
+=-—A=+—H 15,733 - 15,733
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—+F+_A=+—H 3,761,900 338,420 4,100,320

Fubon Bank = #4817




23. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2016

Additions

Disposals

Surplus on revaluation (Note 13)

Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revalued premises

At 31 December 2016

Representing:
Cost
Valuation — 2016

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2016

Charge for the year (Note 7)

Released on disposal

Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revalued premises

At 31 December 2016
Accumulated impairment loss

At 1 January and 31 December 2016

Net book value
At 31 December 2016

(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

BAEREE
R-F—X"E—H—H
WNE

HE

EihBH(F13)
BHEMYEZZFTE

Rk

&N
HE-—ZFT—A~F
E-Sgiid
RZE—XR"F—H—H
FRFTE (FIeE7)
&R E
HIHEMEZ REHITE

RREFHE
RZE-—RE+=R=+—8H

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRS MY EE
23. EIEEE®)
() BREEH K@
Furniture,
fixtures and
Premises equipment Total
B RE
ES e ek
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FAT
3,504,833 679,022 4,183,855
- 150,406 150,406
- (13,823) (13,823)
39,262 - 39,262
(61,762) - (61,762)
3,482,333 815,605 4,297,938
- 815,605 815,605
3,482,333 - 3,482,333
3,482,333 815,605 4,297,938
- 460,220 460,220
61,762 65,244 127,006
- (13,653) (13,653)
(61,762) - (61,762)
- 511,811 511,811
15,733 - 15,733
3,466,600 303,794 3,770,394
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 5 BT 5
23. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 23. EEE(@)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) BREIE¥BR®)
Had the revalued premises been carried at cost less accumulated MEEYEIRK AN R ITE AR - 8
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have been: REEES :
2017 2016
—2—+tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBx FHT
Net book value at 31 December R+ - A=+—HBMEEZFE 817,031 827,646
(b) Fair value measurement of properties (b) MEZAFEEFE
(i) Fair value hierarchy () AFEEZRHE
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s TRINTAEERREHARIRES
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on HEESFSEZMELTFEE L H
a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value HARBEMGEREEREIZRA
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. FEEFEMREZ =BAAFEER
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified BERR - N EEFEMBEZ
is determined with reference to the observability and HAN T2 RN ERITE A A
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as BB REEREEEEMmME
follows: E
Level 1:  Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. —%: FRA—HKBASEAIR
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for ERHEREENAE
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement ERR™ S 2 RCTHER
date Bt E2 AT ER
Level 2:  Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. ZH o FRAZHREASREIER
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, RENEE—RREZIE
and not using significant unobservable inputs. R ABE - UWRTER
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market A BREZ g ASIE)
data are not available HEZATEME TA#H
R ABBEARABREED
LB 2 A BUR
Level 3:  Fair value measured using significant unobservable = FRTUBRREEH A
inputs Btz A AFEER
122 Fubon Bank & #8R1T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE e

23. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

23. EEEE &)
(b) MELLAFEETE @

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) () NFEEERGE#)
Fair value at Fair value measurements
31 December 2017 as at 31 December 2017 categorised into

R=2-t% AVEEFER-Z-tF+-A=+-RAHEMT
+=A=t-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZAVEEHE -# =t 1} =8
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx Fign TEn TEx
Recurring fair value measurement  EXE# AL EEE
Premises: ME 3,761,900 - - 3,761,900
Fair value at Fair value measurements
31 December 2016 as at 31 December 2016 categorised into
RZZF—R"E AVEENER-ZE-—AF+ZA=t-A2ENT
+-A=+-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AT EEHE —R % =%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL FHT FHL
Recurring fair value measurement TEHNTEESE
Premises: ME 3,466,600 - - 3,466,600

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s premises were revalued as at 31 December
2017 and 2016. The valuations were carried out by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited for 31 December 2017 and
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited for 31
December 2016. Both firms are independent firm of surveyors
who have among their staff Fellows of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors or Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued.

The revaluation surplus of HK$297.7 million (2016: HK$32.8
million) has been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the premises revaluation reserve, net of
deferred tax.

REBEE_ZT—+tEFRZFT—~F
+TZRA=+—RHLFE —BKR=
Rz MW EAMER - NEEAE
EEAEE =K o REBZHE
RREB AL 2 HRRSHAER
AEBEERGE ZEHER

REBRBEYVER =T —LFR=
T-RNE+-_A=+—BELE
HeRZT—tF+-A=+—H
E-—E—XE+-A=+—H 14
BN R BE B MERR ()
BRABRE-—RFHERHER
BEBEMARAGETT - MRAR]
HABAEMT  HBHETA
ERERFTASMEBSRESA
EffZ2e4Rxg 8 A AGEHTH
WD K E RS A4S 5 ©

& 5 & #297,700,000/8 T (=&
— 734 : 32,800,000 7T ) &L K
BEERBERENEMEZERERA
BRAREMESHEBP R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERE T

23. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) Fair
(i)

(i)

(iv)

value measurement of properties (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

The fair value of premises is determined using market
comparison approach assuming sale with immediate vacant
possession and by reference to comparable sales evidence.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy

The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement
between opening and closing balances of Level 3 properties,
measured at fair value using a valuation technique with

23. EEEE &)
(b) MELLAFEETE @

(i)

(i)

=R FIEEFTEEBAEE
Bl R A B
WEARNFBETERTISLERT
EBRENRREHERZEAAL
BHEBEMERT -

B85 B AR

TREFRAFEEFEEAME
BATEREA NI B R B ARE 2
=RMEDBORMRGH 2 EHY

significant unobservable inputs: iR
Premises 2017 2016
L/ ES —ZE—tF T —REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At 1 January »m—H—H 3,466,600 3,489,100
Depreciation for the year NEEIE (61,189) (61,762)
Surplus on revaluation — credit EHA%K — FTAMESHE
to premises revaluation reserve & 356,489 39,262
At 31 December WN+—-_HA=+—H 3,761,900 3,466,600
Total gains or losses for the year MR BREEARMIFTEET A
included in other comprehensive HErmBmROANEE
income for assets held at the end W sk B8 4858
of the reporting period
- Premises: net movement in - Y% - MESHREE
premises revaluation reserve it 305,992 41,205
Total gains or losses for the year MR EARATIFEERT A
included in profit or loss for assets BaROARFE Rk
held at the end of the reporting period &8 4258
- Operating expenses: Depreciation - &EXX ) : TE (61,189) (61,762)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (v) BE=RANFEETENER
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range
fE{EH T8 R A BB EE

Premises Market Approach — Comparable  Premium/(discount) on 120% to -30%
Transactions Method characteristic of the

properties
S Mi5E—A B LR 5% YRR B (k) 120%%-30%

Fubon Bank = #4817



23. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(iv) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)
The fair value of premises held for own use are determined
using the Market Approach — Comparable Transactions
Method. Market Approach provides an indication of value by
comparing the subject asset with identical or similar assets for
which price information is available. By analysing such sales,
which qualify as arms-length transactions, between willing
buyers and sellers, adjustments are made for size, location,
time, amenities and other relevant factors when comparing
such sales prices to assess the value of the subject asset.
Comparable Transactions Method utilizes information on
transactions involving assets that are the same or similar to
the subject asset to arrive at an indication of value.

(c) The analysis of net book value of premises is as
follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERE M

23. EEEE &)

(b) Wz AFEEHE @
() EB=RATEESEHEH

(&)
FEERMEN R FEEDERD
BE-ABLBRRZEEE - TH
ETE BB REEREBEREMRA
SHAER SR CNEEFELL R - SR
HEERR - BBOTEMRET R
BREEHENRAFRAETOH
X5 ELREBUNEEESR
EZBER CRERE UE -
i - R R EMEEER - ATE
ERX5EREEERREERR
SHUNEEERFHERNERE
BIE1F -

(c) MEREFEMNDIHUT :

2017 2016
—EB—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FT

Held in Hong Kong at fair value REBRAFEERE
- Long term leases (over 50 years) - REBEHGERAR ) 2,305,500 2,045,900
— Medium term leases (10-50 years) -FHAN(FFEER+F) 1,456,400 1,420,700
3,761,900 3,466,600

24. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 24, FIEHEZEE

In May 2014, the Group transferred two owned properties situated in
Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$92,669,000 from premises
to assets held for sale following the Bank’s decision to dispose of the
properties. In December 2014, the Group sold one of the properties,
with a carrying amount of HK$47,225,000, at a consideration of
HK$52,000,000. A gain of HK$4,775,000 was recognised in profit the
year ended 31 December 2014. The Group is committed to a plan to sell
the remaining property.

The asset is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell at the end of each reporting period. The
carrying amount as of 31 December 2017 of HK$43,900,000 (2016:
HK$42,700,000) represents its fair value less costs to sell. The fair value
measurement is categorized as at Level 3 valuation as described in Note
23 (b)(i) and (b)(iv).

Cumulative income recognized in other comprehensive income relating
to assets held for sale is HK$27,995,000 (2016: HK$27,995,000), net of
tax, which represents cumulative revaluation surplus of the property.

RZZ—NFERA AEEREHEEVNE
5 B9 BR 1 & /5 92,669,000 T8I R IE Y %
WHEBYEERERHRELECEE - R
—NFE+ZA AEEELHET-BREER
47,225,000 T ¥ % - R {E £52,000,000
BT BUREE—ZT—mNE+-—A=1+—H
IFE A R RERR4,775,000/8 TT 2 W2k o A
EEAETELERTHE -

BEENSHREMHAREEAERAFEERL
ERA(MEZREERE)FE - R=ZFT—C
F+ZA=+—H ' BRE{E43,900,000/8 T
(ZZ—X% 142,700,000 ) HEREAF
BERLENE MEAFEEAESEA=
A E (LAB 23 (0)(0) R (b)(iv) BTt ) ©

ZHRAREMEERATER - AR
fEH & & E 27,995,000 T ( B — N ¢
27,995,0007% 7T ) (KRBIE) - BERWED
2T EG AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 5 BT 5
25. GOODWILL 25. &
2017 2016
—Z—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Cost and carrying amounts R K REE
At 1 January w—HA—H 66,182 66,182
Dilution on investment in an associate R—EEE R E 2 #8 (13,932) -
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 52,250 66,182
Goodwill of HK$52,250,000 (2016: HK$66,182,000) in respect of the FRAEER —HBEQARZEZNEE
Group’s interest in an associate has been included in “Interests in 52,250,000/t (= ZF — /<4 : 66,182,000/
associates” (Note 21). TC)BIETE (R E AR 2w | (FiE21) -
26. DEPOSITS AND BALANCES OF BANKS AND OTHER 26. RITRAIERHMERMBE2ERRE
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 1523
2017 2016
—E—+tH ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Deposits and balances from banks RITRIZE 2 TR R &R 2,001,405 1,259,307
Deposits and balances from the HKMA REERZEARRES 24,743 8,159
2,026,148 1,267,466
Amounts due to banks under repurchase Bl i 1T T IETERTTRI %
agreements (Note 42(f)) Z B (MsEa2(f) 9,181,147 9,708,938
11,207,295 10,976,404
27. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 27. EFER
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Demand deposits and current accounts TEH A RTFER 14,174,871 13,717,175
Savings deposits EEEN 1,499,752 1,475,743
Call deposits BT 4,571,802 4,901,228
Time deposits TEHTER 41,821,368 43,469,715
62,067,793 63,563,861
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 5 BT 5

28. TRADING LIABILITIES 28. REBRETZ2EE
2017 2016
—Z—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills/Notes INEESBE EEIEAE 1,846,819 2,010,295

29. OTHER LIABILITIES 29. HihBE

2017 2016
—Z—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHT
Net defined benefit liability (Note 36(a)(i) TEREAE T & EF R (MEE36(a)() 57,301 56,164
Accounts payable and other liabilities ERNERIBEREMEE 2,017,202 1,120,950
2,074,503 1,177,114

30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current tax provision/(recoverable) in the consolidated (a) AR EKRAZENEFIEXE
statement of financial position represents: #% /(TR EENEABIIE ) & ¢

30. REMBRR K ZFAEB

2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits FANEBNEH
Tax for the year P 89,450 59,768
Provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B EBEL T ER (25,564) (87,393)
63,886 (27,625)
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax ERTFEEBFEH
recoverable relating to prior years AT UK B 45 84 (28,063) (438)
35,823 (28,063)
Representing: & -
Hong Kong Profits Tax recoverable* AU Bl A RS E - (28,063)
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax* BRNEHER 35,823 -
35,823 (28,063)
* The amounts of taxation recoverable and payable are expected to * AJ Y [B] R JEA BT & BE TR A I — F A

be settled within 1 year and are included in the “Accrued interest
and other assets” and “Other liabilities” respectively.

EE - BB A BB [ F
BRAMBE IR [RAEEIR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30. REMBMRR R ZAEHR @)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) CERELHEEERAR
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the REETBRRAEAERZELEHIEE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements E/(BE)Z2REARED RERNZEE
during the year are as follows: mE
Depreciation Revaluation
allowances of available-
in excess Defined  Collective for-sale
of related benefit  impairment financial ~ Revaluation
depreciation scheme allowance assets  of premises Other Total
EBEE

nENE  EEEA e THEE

BARE A8 WERE SREEEH  MREH At 28

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

At 1 January 2016 RZE-—7E—f-H (27,679) 14,565 6,754 (5,785) (451,025) (7,156) (470,296)
(Charged)/credited in arriving at the RAEEETR(MR) /&R
profit for the year (Note 12(a)) (F&E12(a)) (18,060) (1,175) 11,204 - 114 (11,398) (14,315)
(Charged)/credited to other REM2 AR (%) /BD
comprehensive income (Note 13) (Ki13) - (3,767) - (10,344) 1,043 - (12,168)
At 31 December 2016 R-E-AE+A=1-8 (#0,739) 9623 17958 (16099 (48969 (18554 (496779
At1 January 2017 H-E-tE-B-R (#0,739) 9623 17958 (16009  (448968) (18554  (496,779)
(Charged)/credited inarriving at the ~ RAEERRID (1K) /BE
profit for the year (Note 12(a)) (K&H12() (6,463) (1,112) 3,998 - 114 (8,445) (11,908)
(Charged)/credited to other REMB2ERES(NR) /K
comprehensive income (Note 13) (H&H13) - 1,305 - (85,453) (50,497) - (134,645)
At31 December 2017 H-E-tE+-A=+- (67,202 9816 21956 (101559 (499351  (6999)  (6433%2)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised is summarised as ERRRLCHBEEERGERMINT :
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHT
Net deferred tax assets A MBI R IER
recognised in the consolidated R IE & =R
statement of financial position 6 6
Net deferred tax liabilities A MBI RIER
recognised in the consolidated RIER B B (EF5E
statement of financial position (643,338) (496,785)
(643,332) (496,779)
(c) Deferred tax assets unrecognised (c) ARERZELEMIBEE
The Group has no material unrecognised deferred tax asset as at RZE—tF+—A=+—H *&H
31 December 2017 (2016: HK$NIl). WEERARERZELEFRBEE(ZT
—NEF o E) e
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31.

SUBORDINATED NOTES ISSUED

US$200 million 6.125% subordinated
notes issued in 2010

Subordinated notes with face value of US$200 million (equivalent
to HK$1,562.6 million) and carrying amount of HK$1,557.5 million
which qualify as supplementary capital were issued by the Bank on 30
November 2010 and mature on 30 November 2020.

If at any time the HKMA determines (having regard to the applicable
regulatory framework) that these subordinated notes no longer
qualify as supplementary capital, the Bank may, on or after 1 January
2013 at its option and subject to the prior written approval of the
HKMA, provide notice to such effect to Noteholders, such notice
being a “Change in Status Notice”. Upon a Change in Status Notice
becoming effective, these subordinated notes shall cease to constitute
subordinated obligations of the Bank and shall thereafter constitute
direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of
the Bank and shall at all times thereafter rank pari passu and without
any preference among themselves. The payment obligations of the
Bank under these subordinated notes shall, save for such exceptions
as may be provided by applicable legislation, at all times thereafter
rank at least equally with all its other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations including liabilities in respect of deposits.

These subordinated notes bear interest at 6.125% per annum, payable
semi-annually. Upon a Change in Status Notice becoming effective,
the interest rate for these subordinated notes will become 5.625% per
annum, payable semi-annually. These subordinated notes are stated at
amortised cost.
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R=ZZE—ZF317200,000,0003E T
FEBRAEB125%MEBIEZE

B SRS MY EE
31. ERITRERE
2017 2016
—ZET—tF T —REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
1,557,472 1,544,304

IR ZE—TF+—A=+HETEEAR
200,000,000% 7t (#H & 7 % 1,562,600,000/%8
70) & BRE {8 & 1,557,500,0007% T & £F & Bt
MERENNBEZE  ZZBEN_T=TF
+—A=+H28-

i 2 & RIERKIRRE (K BE A=
RER)ARERBETBESERIERNME
K FAAAIR-ZE—=F—A—Bagzk &
ERESSEREMILERBENREREA
BABMTE  ZBARMLEEREM] -
R EEBAENR - AREREBK T BE
MATTZEREEE  YREREBRATZE
B BG4 FREREEREL LHERHE
RIEMKEZARSER - BRI EEAE
SR o BRBRARARERE 2 HIIMERIN - K
TRBARRERE 2 N REESREREMES
W=D EMA MR A MR REEIR M IR E
AR(BRBEERZAR) ZERSHES

FEERBRFNXE6.126%:1 8 © BFFX
[—IR - WA FFBANERR - NREREZ
FRIEAGH5.625%  FHFFXN—IR o K
REZBABBRRATIIR -
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B ERE T

32. SHARE CAPITAL

32. B&

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

130

“E-tF+ZA=t-H “E—"Ft+ZA=1—H
Number of Share Number of Share
shares capital shares capital
ROEE BRA RiEE R
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
Ordinary shares ZER

As at 1 January and 31 December

wn—A—-BEk+=-A=t+—H

1,641,273,089

4,830,448 1,641,273,089 4,830,448

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends from time

to time and are entitled to one vote per share at a general meeting of the
Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual

B A BRI B R BN ALT
ZRERE LSRR - B LARYEA
T2 RBEEZARSHA -

assets.
33. RESERVES 33. A&
(a) Foreign exchange reserve (a) IMERRE

(b)

The foreign exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translations of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2(t).

Regulatory reserve

The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes.
Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained
earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets,
excluding impairment losses, until the financial assets are
derecognised and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

(c) Investment revaluation reserve
policies in Note 2(g).
(d) Premises revaluation reserve

The premises revaluation reserve have been set up and are dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land
and buildings in Note 2(j).

Fubon Bank = #4817

AEBESNERERIBEAFTEZINEB
BRMEMELEZLMBIIEEZR o AR
RIEFRE2() T 2 SR BURERIE o

(b) EERE
BIRIRCRITE D) BT TRB T
HEAESREREOEM o KB
BHNERNLERLERRERER
B PR -

(c) REEMRE

RESHFEHEREIIHEEEREEZ
ANTEBEEEEZSRMEEFILIBRZZ
HEHRFE(TBERERSE) - RN
H2(Q)F 2 B BERIE -

(d) MEEMFRHE

ME B FEE TR E2() T L kg
FHRANZ SRt ERPTR Y KRR o
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34.

35.

ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

US$193 million undated non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities

On 29 December 2017, the Bank issued undated non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities (“Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities”) with a face value of US$193 million (equivalent to HK$1,508
million net of related issuance costs). The Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities are undated and bear a 4.85% coupon until the first call date
on 29 December 2022. The coupon will be reset every five years if the
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities are not redeemed to a fixed rate
equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 2.61%
per annum.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to
cancel coupon payment (subject to the requirement as set out in the
terms and conditions of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities) and the
coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the Bank is stopped
from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders unless the next
scheduled coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities will be written
off up to the amount as directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA
notifies the Bank that in the opinion of the HKMA, the Bank would
become non-viable if there is no write off of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding capital securities
from 29 December 2022 or any subsequent coupon payment date, but
subject to restriction as set out in the terms and conditions.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash
flow statement

Cash and balances with banks

Money at call and short notice with
original maturity within three months

Treasury bills with original maturity within
three months

Placements with banks with
original maturity within three months

B MNIRITRIZE 2 A #R
R =18 A AEIE 2 5B A0 K 58 R

FR=1EAAREHzBEES

193,000,0005 7t & 5| Hi B 3E 25t
REBIN—RERES

B RS ER M =
34. BEINRATIR
2017 2016
—B—t5F —E—AE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHx FHET
1,507,797 -

RZZE—+E+=—A=+NAB  ATETE
M 18 & 193,000,000 3 7t ( #0 K 48 BE 35 17 5K
A FE 1,508,000,00058 7T ) K £ B B B
R BEBIN—REAFRF([EII—FER
FH]) c BIN—REAFTHEINHA BH S
485%EER - HE_E-_—HF+-_A-t+Ah
BRE—REIWKE - EIN—RERBHL
FEHERERATHERAESSXNFE
2.61% 2 ETEFHERER @ AIZEXRBSTRF
EHEE -

ERAFFEXN —IR o RITHRREBUH A
ER(RBRRNEIN-RERB S Z R MM
HE)  BUEN RSN RETHE - A - BRI
THREEE&XN  BAAT A SRR EBR
BRIRER S °

RN ERBAKRT  ERBONEASHET
WiH - ANTREEEERE - BIFNRER
BHEOAREAETIAME - LR RREERIE
TREHERBHNER °

AOTHEENERREAINR T -_—F+_4
ZHABSERMEREEXN B HEERER
BENBEARES - MRAETHMER GG 2
PRl

5. AERERREIAR

() ZERERPRZASREFRR
£IHE

R =18 A A EIHZ 81T R 2 HK

2017 2016
—=—+tF NS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHT
989,187 1,757,546
3,808,138 3,951,888
2,408,840 3,020,837
- 1,893,845
7,206,165 10,624,116
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WIS MY EE
35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 3. REeRERELER®
(b) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (b) #ZHE BRI ZEER

financial position

2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
Cash and short term funds (Note 15) BeREHES (ME15) 5,133,534 6,019,614
Treasury bills B
- Trading assets (Note 16) - FER SR AE (MzE16) 1,846,823 2,310,246
— Available-for-sale financial assets - A E SR EE (MTFE19)
(Note 19) 1,024,521 1,862,465
Placements with banks and other IRITSRE M & R HE PR
financial institutions 558,348 3,264,233
Amount shown in the consolidated RAEMBRRAKRANIRERE
statement of financial position 8,563,226 18,456,558
Less: Amount with an original maturity B REEAE A=A N ERIHA
of over three months kL (1,357,061) (2,832,442)
Cash and cash equivalents in the HRAHRSRBDRAZES R
consolidated cash flow statement ZRBEELIER 7,206,165 10,624,116
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MMEEBMELENEBEZHER
activities
Financial
liabilities Debt Additional
designated securities equity
at fair value issued instruments Total
EEARM
ATEEZ [5::¢h)
cRmAE BEXESE EHIREIA st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FTHET TERT THET
At 1 January 2017 R-E—tF—-A—H 406,185 821,482 - 1,227,667
Changes from financing cash flows: BMERLHESH
Repayment of debt securities BEEBKES (407,380) (826,498) - (1,233,878)
Net proceeds from issuance of BITESEFBRE
debt securities R - 1,174,463 - 1,174,463
Net proceeds from issuance of BITEINRATIA
additional equity instruments P IB S E - - 1,507,797 1,507,797
Total changes from financing RERSRERLHEHE
cash flows (407,380) 347,965 1,507,797 1,448,382
Interest expense MEZH 1,195 9,562 - 10,757
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—tF
+=A=+-8 - 1,179,009 1,507,797 2,686,806
132 Fubon Bank & #8R1T



36. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans

The Group operates a retirement scheme, namely the Fubon Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited Retirement Scheme (“the Scheme”), which
incorporates a defined benefits plan for 22% (2016: 23%) of its full
time employees. The Scheme is administered by trustees who are
independent. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group. The Group has secured Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF”) exemption status for the Scheme. The Scheme is
funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with the
trust deed governing the Scheme and based on an independent
actuary’s recommendations. The latest independent actuarial
valuation of the Scheme was at 31 December 2017 and was
prepared by Joseph Yip, Fellow of the Society of Actuaries, of
Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited using the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method. The actuarial valuation indicates that the Group’s
obligations under the Scheme are 80.44% (2016: 80.17%) covered
by the plan assets held by the trustee.

The Scheme offers a lump sum at retirement based on final salary
and years of service or employee and employer contributions if
greater. The contribution based benefit is notionally invested in a
“guarantee fund” (for which the Group acts the Guarantor), with no
less than a 5% p.a. return.

The Scheme is closed to new entrants except that in exceptional
circumstances new individual entrants are allowed to join at the
Group’s discretion, so that the plan’s size is contained. However,
the defined benefit element and the 5% p.a. guaranteed return
offered on contributions exposes the Group to actuarial risks such
as interest rate risk, investment risk and longevity risk.

(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position are as follows:

E2HS B AT
HAHERE

Present value of wholly or partly
funded obligations
Fair value of Scheme’s assets

Net liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position (Note 29)

BEFHE(MFE29)

ZAtBIEEN AT EE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE e

36. EERKER
(a) EFEBARMKETE

AEBET—BHEKSE  2AFH
BIT(ES) BRAFARKTE ([ &t
1) BH2%(ZT— N :23%)
2HEERT —HETEEBMAE o ZaT
EHBYZAATIE - ZAEEEHA
SENEENRTHE - AEEHZTE
ERRHIEAES([BES ) MmERE
7 o KT BTV AREERERE Xt &
WEFRRE  WUBMIEEMNER A
HEMELHZK - ZetESMMBURE
HEPR-_ZE—tFE+-_A=1+—8&
17 AE(FEB)ERARIZEERGE
BEREMAeeB) B EMEEAR
RE - ZRBREHERRT  ANEEAZRT
EIFAEZEER  80.44%(ZF— X
F :80.17%) Al BB Z L AFTIE A BET
BB ERSBRE -

&t Bl RN AR B & H & LIk
BFEHRREIHFZBESERHE 22
B ANEAZHANEE LRER—
B ERES (AREERERA) - &
B 3R R AMEE% ©

& AT T A0 AE BB - MR AAE
ABAREERBRERFINA - BEZ
SRR R A S - Rif - EREREF
D R AE MR E5%EAR O R A %
EmERERR - flanFRER - RE
R Rk RBEE

() REEHBERIXERLN T E

NERE M BRNRIERZ

mF
2017 2016
—§-+tF e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHIT
(292,992) (283,198)
235,691 227,034
(57,301) (56,164)

Annual Report 2017 F4E 4

133



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

36. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)

(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position are as follows: (continued)

A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled
after more than one year. However, it is not practicable to
segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the
next twelve months, as future contributions will also relate
to future services rendered and future changes in actuarial

36. EERMHKER (=)
(a) EFEBAEMRETE 5)

() REEHBEMRIKRERDN S
L(INNENE )
FitBEN—H D TEHRENER—
FRIEE - A - BREBHRRR
T ARNEHEFIHETER -
RE AR REAE IS R R
RERF MBE B R R E R R RE

assumptions and market conditions. B o

The Scheme follows a tri-annual funding valuation schedule ZEtEIRNE — R ELE hER R
when at each funding valuation, the contributions for the EETNE= it\m RIL— XA
following three years are set. The last funding valuation was e ABILE=Z—R"F+=

as of 31 December 2016 and it was assessed at that valuation BE=+—H BEREEMRKEFH
that the entity contributes 14.0% of member’s salary. The next £14.0%EH B FORFE-HE - %
FTEIBER R T ER =T — NG
+=ZA=1+—H#ET T XBEF
o

funding valuation will be carried out by the Scheme actuary no
later than 31 December 2019.

In addition to the above, the Group acts as the “Guarantor” Br ESTASN - REBEE [HERA
to meet the 5% year return on the defined contribution LA w2 FE BB BB A S SF 5% /9 [
benefits. The annual contribution relating to this obligation ®e BEZETHERRASFET
is determined annually (based on the Scheme’s return in the (ERtA—BENA=1THEHK
1 July — 30 June financial year). The Guarantor contribution FEZFERNEFHR) - —FE—+F
determined for the 1 July 2017 — 30 June 2018 financial year tA—HRAE-_ZET—NEXA=1+
is HK$10,628,000 which will be made in the first half of 2018. A B FEHNRRAERCETE R

10,628,000/ 7T * WHKR=ZZ—N\

FEFFED -

(i) Plan assets consist of the following: (i) EFEIEEEEFWLT :
2017 2016
—E—+tHF T —RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Equities or Unit Funds HQZK_JZ%%E@ 7,829 14,902
Interest bearing securities HEE 57,597 37,947
Bank deposit, cash and other IRITER e kEM 170,265 174,185
235,691 227,034

All of the interest bearing securities have quoted prices in
active markets.

B RESINERTISARE -
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36. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)

EERIKER (2
(a) EEEEAERMRETE 2
(i) EEEIEFE (LR (B A # B

36.

(i)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligation
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
At 1 January: »m—H—H 283,198 295,693
Remeasurements: EHAE
— Actuarial losses arising from - ANOZEBREFELEZ
changes in demographic TEEEE
assumptions 7,286 39
— Actuarial gain arising from changes - B &R RSB EE 2
in financial assumptions B8 W - (25,341)
— Actuarial losses arising from - BERABRELEZBEEE
experience adjustments 2,854 8,17
293,338 274,148
Benefits paid by the plans FEIEfEF (20,638) (11,409)
Current service cost R HA AR #E B AN 13,346 13,237
Interest cost T B A 3,260 3,399
Participants’ contributions SR MR 3,686 3,823
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 292,992 283,198

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation is 6.0 years (2016: 5.6 years).

JERRAE A B E N T HR 56.0
F(ZFE—RF :656%F)°

(iv) Movements in plan assets (iv) Er&IE&EEEE)

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHT

At 1 January: m—H—H 227,034 209,652

Group’s contributions paid to the plans 2S£ B ¥ 5+ 2| 9 3¢ 26,676 27,130

Benefits paid by the plans FEIE AR (20,638) (11,409)

Interest income FEUYW A 2,737 2,520
Administrative expenses paid from Bi 28 E S TR

plan assets (2,346) (2,142)

Return on plan assets FFEIEER R 2,228 1,283

At 31 December Rnt+—-—A=+—H 235,691 227,034
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B R 5 BT 5
36. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 36. EERAKEN
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued) (a) EEEEAERMRETE 2
(v) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (v) REEEZTENDKFPEERZ
comprehensive income are as follows: R -
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current service cost (Note 7) ANERRR AR AN (B RET) 13,346 13,287
Net interest on net defined ERBNAERRFNR
benefit liability 523 879
Administrative expenses and taxes T HH R 1E 2,346 2,142
Total amounts recognised in B Y
profit or loss 16,215 16,258
Actuarial losses/(gain) B EE () 10,140 (21,545)
Return on plan assets, excluding HEEE @R
interest income TERFENEWA (2,228) (1,283)
Total amounts recognised in other REMEEKSES
comprehensive income (Note 13) Rz 4258 (MI5E13) 7,912 (22,828)
Total defined benefit cost TERRAIK A B R 24,127 (6,570)
The actual return on the Scheme’s assets for the year BEz-_Z2—tF+=-_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately HEFE  FEEEERERE
HK$2,619,000 (2016: HK$1,661,000). 2,619,000 T ( =& — X F :

1,661,000/ 7T) °

(vi)  Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted (i) BEXIEERK (K BINETFS
averages) and sensitivity analysis are as follows: B RSB T ¢
2017 2016
—E=—+tF —E—REF
Discount rate IR = 1.7% p.a. 1.7% p.a.

EFR1.7% FFIEL.7%

Salary increase rate Ha R 3.0% p.a. 3.0% p.a.
FFE3.0% FHE3.0%
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36. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 36. EERMHKER (=)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued) (a) EEEFENGTE @

(i) EAXBERLZ (KM BINEFS
) REBESWT © (&)
UTFABEREASABERRE
S0MEZREEBMNEAN =S
—tF+=—A=+—8%m 0§

(vi)  Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted
averages) and sensitivity analysis are as follows: (continued)
The analysis below shows how the defined benefit obligation
as at 31 December 2017 would have increased/(decreased)
as a result of 50 basis points change in the significant actuarial

assumptions:

D)

Increase in Decrease in

As at 31 December 2017 50 basis points 50 basis points
R=B—tF+=A=+—H EFA50MEE 2 T FE501E & 2
HK$°000 HK$’000

FTERT FTERT

Discount rate PrIg =& (8,497) 9,083
Salary increase rate EFemnE 4,981 (4,395)
Increase in Decrease in

As at 31 December 2016 50 basis points 50 basis points
RZE—RF+ZA=+—H FFH50fEER TS0 MEE 2,
HK$’000 HK$’'000

FAET FHT

Discount rate PR = (7,646) 7,930
Salary increase rate H e IR 4,531 (3,965)

The sensitivity analysis presented above has been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period assuming that all
other assumptions are held constant.

(b) Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”)

The Group also operates an MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and not previously covered by the Scheme. The Group
participates in an approved MPF scheme with the Bank Consortium
Trust Company Limited to provide a scheme choice to both existing
and new employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by an independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make mandatory contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

In addition to the mandatory contribution, employees will have
an one-off election to make a voluntary contribution of 5% of
employee’s relevant income. At the same time, the employer will
make a matching voluntary contribution accordingly.

A E2WMEBRED MR EERTIE
RINREMRBRO AR IEE
(REMBEMBRRRFTE) -

(b) BEIMAEESFE([BEETE )

AEBETREFERGIERRS B
PImREREREBEMNEEREANZE
MAREHAZFEANNEEHETT — B
BIEEAE AEESERBETAR
AE-HERAWEESFE - ARR
B ABIERRMEERE - BES
sHEI T BIB Y X FEAPTE A E B EK
RIKEHE -

BEEBELTE  BEXRHEEEESH
BLET EIR(E B AR A VEL 5% 2 58 il 1%
R EEXBRREARBKRAZ LR
30,000 7T o —KCEETEIEL R - #t
AT ARE -

Broag bl s - BE AR —R—R
M2 - SREAR AR % 2 B R
R - A - BERAELRENESHE
B R HK o
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WIS MY EE
37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 37. IREBREIE
(a) Credit related commitments and contingencies (a) EEERBEZAERSAEE
Credit related commitments and contingencies include HEEAEE 7 AERNAREBR BIEAN
acceptances, letters of credit, guarantees and commitments to IHE - ERE  BERMEAMNKIE - %
extend credit. The risk involved is essentially the same as the EzREBER FERTFRHERZE
credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The BERRIER - AHNSBRIEEASOHT
contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk should the 2RBEBRFENEAZERRZ &
contract be fully drawn upon and the credit default. As the facilities 5 o AMNZEHE A ER A L A LIRE
may expire without being drawn upon, the contractual amounts do AR MANSBIT TRERFEF AR
not represent expected future cash flows. REME °
The following is a summary of the contractual and credit risk- ITASEENEEFERBZRERK
weighted amounts of each significant class of credit related REBERZAEHNCHELEENESE
commitments and contingencies: ZHE
2017 2016
—E—t5F T —RF
Credit risk Credit risk
Contractual weighted Contractual weighted
amounts amounts amounts amounts
FERR ZEREE
EHEE £ XL &5
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT FHT
Direct credit substitutes HEEEENIER 138,170 138,170 101,117 101,117
Transaction-related contingencies HxX 582 skAEH 16,172 8,086 25,580 12,790
Trade-related contingencies R S ERM s ARER 734,248 146,850 267,169 53,434
Undrawn loan facilities AEMZBRER
— which are unconditionally - Hh AT E G EUE
cancellable 25,619,171 - 24,751,255 —
— with an original maturity of - REIEIEEHR A&
up to one year BEE—F 8,721 1,744 87,740 17,548
— with an original maturity of - REIEIEEHR A&
more than one year —FE 2,219,450 1,103,476 1,155,142 573,554
28,735,932 1,398,326 26,388,003 758,443
The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted AREtEEERR INESRE 2 BB nkE
amounts range from 0% to 100%. HRAF0%ZE100% ©
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

Lease commitments

At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Properties: Y
— Within one year - —FR
— After 1 year but within 5 years -—ZhFMH
— More than 5 years - AFLAE

The Group leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. Lease payments are renegotiated on renewal
upon expiration of lease term and adjusted to reflect market rentals.
None of the leases include contingent rentals.

Capital commitments

Capital commitments for purchase of equipment and available-for-
sale financial assets outstanding at 31 December not provided for in
the financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for BRIEX

Contingent liability in respect of legal claim

The Group is involved in a lawsuit where judgment was issued
against the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.
Related compensation and legal costs of HK$100 million were
recognized in the year ended 31 December 2015. The Group has
filed a Notice of Appeal while the Plaintiff also filed a Respondent’s
Notice regarding the compensation amount. Additional
compensation of HK$73 million and interest, which cannot be
reasonably estimated, may be incurred should the final judgment
be in favour of the Plaintiff. Based on legal advice, the Directors
do not believe it is probable that any further compensation will be
incurred by the Group and therefore no additional provision has
been recognised for this lawsuit.

B ERE M

37. RABBRAE @)

(b)

(d)

HERE

R+ZA=+—8  TAIEEKLED
TZARKEENESEBROT

2017 2016
—g—t% —EAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT T
25,612 24,792
33,645 38,248
10,880 17,204
70,137 80,244

FEERBELEENERE TYWERR
BIEE - BAFHONNRFHRA—F2
TH WA REHERME GREES
H# - HEFRIBARHEL GRE RN
B R B 8 B A R TS A
T - HEAOeERAES -

BAREE

RTZA=+—BARRH RS RIRE
ZEHBERBRARMESREEZ

RARERRRMT :

2017 2016
—®—t%F —FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FB b
242,280 248,014

BEERRBHNIAEE
ARESR-FHD  RBE-T—A

F+-A=t+—BULFEHEAEEE
HIEREF - HEARERERER1EST
EREBE-_Z—RFt+-_A=+—AH1
FERER AKBEERI EHFBAE
MESANKEESBEERIEHARM
£ o WEZKRIIRIRE AR - BIAT4E
= 1B BB NN B B £ 73,000,000/ 7T & £
EABMEFZAE c BBEEEER  E
ETRAAEE R SBBUTME— P
8 E LI R AR ATER RN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERE T

38. TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets and
the income arising thereon are excluded from these financial statements,
as the Group has no beneficial interest in the assets.

39. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Fubon Bank = #4817

Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices)
or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets
that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
category includes all instruments where the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices
for similar instruments where significant unobservable
adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

38.

39.

TS
REE-BRUEEAREMZEANGHRR
EA 57 - BRINEFG B R E MBI E K
FEEE - MANAKBETERZEEETHA
Eattsn  AUERFEEREMELZRAT
ENEFHIHRETIIER -

EMTRAZAFEE
(a) UAFEESRZEMTA

RNFEEZGH-—RTEIEME X
REEREABENZERTAZFER
HETISEREL R c AEBERAT
IR RMGTEMAz A ABE s ERT
ZAVEESERHEFEBATER

—# HEIARERTISEZ M5

WECRERE) -

H — AR BT L R B LA SN AT R
=E & (AER) R ZE (AR
BERBARE - ZH8E
BER T EETHEZ
TH:BUITARERTS
ZHISHRE  TEIERMS
ZHERFEUTAZHE
HBEEEBIBRG I EE K
3 50 T 45 BUR B 52 T 15
Z B b E AT -

A

=4 WA R B 45 B (T ]
BREGABRE) RERNEE
HEBEOEABE - 20 HE
BLHE (i (B Rl I FE B0 AT
EEEATABEREESE T
BEZHBEREAREBZME
TH-WERATABRRFE
FRREAARKRTAZH
B ERE - 2o BBERER
UTANHREMGENTA -



39. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE e

39. ERMTEZAFERE®
(@) UAFEEIERzEMIEwm)
TEIUALBESRHE (AL EERE

The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair value

hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is categorised:

2017

Assets

Trading assets

Derivative financial instruments
Available-for-sale financial assets

Liabilities
Trading liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

2016

Assets

Trading assets

Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Available-for-sale financial assets

Liabilities

Trading liabilities

Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

—g—t%
aE

BiER SRS AE
PTESRT A
TRUELBAE

&8
RHFEAET AR
TEESMTA

BE
FIERZRBEE
HEE RiBBER AR
NHEEZEZMEE
TESmMTA
AHHESREE

=
RHEBETZAE
BERBBERARKR
RFEEzEBAE
TESMTA

2R DT AR E BR AR FEER

BZemTIA:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—#& b 11} =4 “wE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
1,846,823 - - 1,846,823
- 705,165 - 705,165
15,741,031 15,956,289 546,340 32,243,660
17,587,854 16,661,454 546,340 34,795,648
1,846,819 - - 1,846,819
- 228,216 - 228,216
1,846,819 228,216 - 2,075,035
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
— &% =& =& s
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHTT FHET FHT FHT
2,310,246 - - 2,310,246
- 39,226 - 39,226
- 753,244 - 753,244
18,632,633 17,257,363 234,549 31,124,545
15,942,879 18,049,833 234,549 34,227,261
2,010,295 - - 2,010,295
- 406,185 - 406,185
- 443,714 - 443,714
2,010,295 849,899 - 2,860,194
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39. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

During the year 2017 and 2016, there were transfers of financial
instruments from Level 1 to Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy of
HK$2,313 million as active markets cannot be identified for identical
instruments, and transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 of HK$4,322
million as active markets were identified for identical instruments.
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

(1)

Valuation of financial instruments with significant

unobservable inputs

The following methods have been applied in determining the
fair values of financial instruments under Level 3 of the fair

value hierarchy:

(i)  The fair value of unquoted equity investments is
estimated, if possible, using the applicable price/
earnings ratio for similar listed companies adjusted to
reflect specific circumstances of the issues; and

(i) the fair value of unlisted investment funds is estimated
using the net asset value as reported by the managers of

such funds.

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
balances to the ending balances for fair value measurements

in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Assets

At 1 January

Purchases

Sales

Settlements

Changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss:
— Impairment losses on

available-for-sale financial assets

Changes in fair value recognised in

other comprehensive income

At 31 December

Total gains or losses for the year
included in other comprehensive
income for assets held at the end of
the reporting period

Total gains or losses for the year
included in profit or loss for assets
held at the end of the reporting period

Fubon Bank = #4817

'E
W—HA—H
BE

HE
®E
FERERAERZ
REBEEZD :

— A HE SR

BE 2B ERBE

FEEMEHEKERA
ER 2N THEEES

BR+=—A=+—8H

NBEMRIFAZEETA
Hit 2 H w2 NEE
Yo 2 ok 5 18 4 R

NBEMRFAZEETA
1Bk 2 A FE WaT sk
B

39. ERMTEZAFERE®
(@) UAAFEEEIERz2EMTE )

RIEBE—tFER-T—RF - BRKEE
R TES#E ER™S - EE23.13
BETHNERMITIABAFEESLAHE
FREBEE_H  ARERMART
AN ER™S - (B{E43.22(88TH
CRMTARE-REBRE R - F=H
MEE AE Y o AEEZBERNRIK
EHARERNRE AR EENAFEERE
DEREER o

() (EAEXTAEREEETS
AT AGE
ATHZEERAREERAFEBESR

HE=HRTzemMTEZ A AFEE

B :

() HETEZRAREZAT
B8 793 W4T 1R T 6 A 4
YRR MARBEE
R B TEAT 2 5 R R AT £
iR

() FETRAZSZATEE
RIAZ B S 2 12 BB
AEFER T -

TR A FEBESERE=HA
AT EBEFEZFIHERF LG
HH 2 HER -

Available-for-sale financial assets

AHHELRMEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHERT FHT
234,548 248,859
4,646 9,960
(15,215) (15,995)
(1,286) (6,685)
323,647 (1,591)
546,340 234,548
323,647 (1,591)
7,216 10,085




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

(i)

Effects of changes in significant unobservable
assumptions to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions

Although the Group believes that its estimates of fair value are
appropriate, the use of different methodology or assumptions
could lead to different measurements of fair value. For fair
value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a
10% change in either direction in the net asset value reported
by respective counterparties would have the following effects:

Effect on profit or loss

B ERE M

39. ERMTEZAFERE®
(@ UXFEEIEZ2EHMI @

(i)

BEAT A B RR LT E L
AITEREERRZZE

HAREEEEHEATEEMTE
HE  BRERTRASNRER
REEHATEEZTRGE - ®A
FTEEZERHIE=RT2AFEE
HEME  BRSGUFRBIEE
FEMEE T REB10%A] BEEE
TAIFE :
Effect on other

comprehensive income

HERRNSE HHM2ERRNE
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
BH2E ol ) BH2E EilL g0
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+&#+=-A=+-H TERT FTHEx TART TER
Asset BE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ES R EE - (907) 54,634 (53,727)

Effect on profit or loss

Effect on other
comprehensive income

HERERNTE HEMEEAKENTE
Favourable  Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
BHZ®  TRE® AR THED
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2016 RZZB—R"F+ZA=+—H FHT FEx FHT FTET
Asset BE
Available-for-sale financial assets FI{tHHEERIEE - (1,200) 23,455 (22,255)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented in the table below:

the fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts with
no specific maturity is assumed to be the amount payable on
demand at the end of the reporting period;

the fair value of variable rate financial instruments and loans
is assumed to be approximated by their carrying amounts.
Changes in the credit quality of these financial instruments
and loans are not taken into account in determining gross fair
values, as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately by
deducting the amount of the impairment loss and allowances
from both the carrying amount and fair value; and

(b) UXFEEIFZEMIAZ
DFEE
THHERERBRRE EAREERT
KIRZEMITAZ AFEE

(i

BREBERRESTHRZFHE
BREZAFEBERNBREHRTE
KEBHRZ 2

BRIECMIARERZ ATE
BERAHEREASHE - EEQTEE
RERT T EZEEMTARE
REEEEBZEL  WHHREE
ez i el =h ok SO
BEABRREERERBEHESETN
R R
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BIRESRE et

39. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value (continued)

(ii)

(iv)

the fair value of fixed rate loans and mortgages carried at
amortised cost is estimated by comparing market interest
rates when the loans were granted with current market rates
offered on similar loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans
within the portfolio are not taken into account in determining
gross fair values, as the impact of credit risk is recognised
separately by deducting the amount of the impairment loss
and allowances from both the carrying amount and fair value.

the fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities is determined
with reference to the available market value. If quoted market
prices are not available, then the fair value is estimated on the
basis of pricing models (see Note 2(g)(iii)).

39. ERMTEZAFERE®

(b) EULATFEEIRzESMIT A2
ANFEEE)

(i)

(iv)

BEE S EFR RIS AFIIR
RN DT EBERSEBLBERE
Z TSN ERERERERIRE TS
FEFFHE - ANEERRZZE
BBERE RN EERRR
EBERBEHESETARBER
RETRLATEERILAREEAS
NEERZEEEEE( -

BEIHERZF 2 AFEAEE
SETBMEET ° MEXERT
BHE - ADTFEERERTERERN
(B M FE2(g) i) (A 5T °

RNEEIRKA S BB R AR BT
AVEBERAN T —+tFR=T
—ANETZ A=+ HZAFEELE
BAEE  HUTHIBRSN

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments carried at
cost or amortised cost are not significantly different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 except as follows:

2017
—E—tF
Carrying
amount  Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RESHE DYEE —&% =& =&
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTEx FTExT TER FTEx TEx
Financial assets THEE
Advances to customers TEER 2,469,962 2,329,606 - 2,329,606 -
Held-to-maturity investments BERERE 1,561,796 1,617,498 - 1,617,498 -
Financial liability SHERE
Deposits from customers BEFEFER 41,821,368 42,107,357 - 42,107,357 -
2016
—E-REF
Carrying
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RESHE NTEE —#% = =&
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FTHAT FAET FTAT FHT
Financial assets THEE
Advances to customers BEEXR 2,237,643 2,208,895 - 2,208,895 -
Held-to-maturity investments 5 Z=Z|HI#% & 1,649,884 1,615,642 - 1,615,642 =
Financial liability THERE
Deposits from customers EEER 43,469,715 43,480,594 - 43,480,594 -
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40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with its
ultimate holding company and other related parties. These transactions
were entered into in the ordinary course of the Group’s banking business
and included, inter alia, lending, placement of interbank deposits,
correspondent banking transactions and foreign exchange transactions.
The transactions were priced at the relevant market rates at the time
of each transaction, and were on the same terms as those available to
other counterparties and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the
directors, these transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms.

Information relating to income and expenses from related party
transactions during the year and balances outstanding as at the end of

the reporting period is set out below:

(@) Income/(expenses)

Fellow subsidiaries IEES Al
Fee and commission income EAHAMRBESERA
Fellow subsidiaries IGES -G
Fee and commission expenses BERRESI W
(b) Placement of deposits
Fellow subsidiaries (EES A
Cash and short-term funds BEREHES
Fellow subsidiaries 6] Z BB 2 &)

FERTF B R E M &

Accrued interest and other assets

There was no impairment allowance made against the above
placement of deposits with related parties.

B ERE M

40. EXBEELXRS

FA - AEEEESEERARREES AT
VZERG o ZERXHHEARBIRITER 2B
BEBBEDRY - 8RB(NRIOEE - )T
FIZEIFME TR - BERTRI I RINER S -
HZERGUETERSGHZEATSEXRE
B UREAAEEITRETEORZHF IR
TP ZBRETGETT - BEERR  ZFERXST)
B R EERETIL

BRFARES IR HMELEZ W RIS
HIRHAREERBZERFINT

(@) WA (XiH)

The Group
AEE
2017 2016
—e—t% “E-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET
33,576 22,665
364 -
(b) B

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
12,993 23,818
312 610

bt BR RS R U5 DGR SR (B A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R 5 BT 5
40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 40. ERBEEARS 1)
(c) Acceptance of deposits (c) EMER
2017 2016
—E—tHF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Ultimate holding company RARZER A 7]
Deposits from customers BEEM 551 1,907
Fellow subsidiaries IGEZ 0N
Deposits and balances of banks RITREREMS Bk
and other financial institutions TR A% 36,503 20,608
Fellow subsidiaries GEShE=NG
Deposits from customers EFPER 309,089 244,699
Other related parties H b fiEs
Deposits from customers BPREXR 217,759 213,925
Fellow subsidiaries Bl Z 1B 2> a]
Other liabilities Hb&fE 364 -
(d) Financial instruments (d £mIA
2017 2016
—E—tHF T —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Fellow subsidiaries IEES PN
Derivative contracts (notional principal) PMETAEHN(BEAREHE) 378,923 438,129
146 Fubon Bank & #8R1T



40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) Loans to directors and entities connected with
directors

Loans to directors of the Bank and entities connected with
directors disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Aggregate amount of relevant loans

at 31 December by the Bank H) 4R =8
Maximum aggregate amount of Kﬁgﬁmrﬁ;ﬂg}&
relevant loans outstanding during =k

the year by the Bank

There was no interest due but unpaid nor any impairment allowance
made against these loans at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

() Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
paid to the Bank’s Directors as disclosed in Note 8 is as follows:

¥ MEREERN
RIRAER

Salaries and short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 7).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE e

EXBEZAFRI (@)
(e) EENESHESEEN

40.

BAEE SR FERF)EE383(1)(d)E XA
T(i&&éﬁ%*' SER) ARG E3E I E
TESRESHETREROT :

FITHBEERN T —A=+—H

2017 2016
—®— % —ExE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FiET
49 421,043
ME R
421,046 425,086

RZE—tF+-A=+—BXEIH
Eikﬁ B Bh % % B SR R E
B(ZZ—RF:E\E)-

(f) EEEAEME

TZEBAEBZME (BENE8MRE
NFRTERZFHB)MAT ¢

2017 2016
—E—tF ZENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
53,928 51,147
2,968 2,803
56,896 53,950

& st A [BERA(RHFET) -
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40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 40. EXBEZHFRSZ (@)

(9) Credit facilities to key management personnel (99 TEEEAEEERKE

148

During the year, the Bank provided loans and credit facilities to
key management personnel of the Group and their close family
members and companies controlled or significantly influenced by
them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary course of
business and on substantially the same terms as for comparable
transactions with other employees. The amounts involved, other
than transactions with the ultimate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries, are set out below.

FAR - FATAREEZIEETBAER
BE2BERBBIARZ LS AN LPTES
ZRRARZEALTERERTENIZA
ARHEESREE - ZEEERBE IR
EHEHBIETREME  MABGTER
MEEMAZZAELERRZ 5 KR
R o BB H AR R RRFRKE A A
MR 5O - B REEHIIAT -

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Loans, at 31 December R+-—A=+—HEXR&HE 2,769 3,542
Interest income IS @N 37 48
Credit facilities, at 31 December R+-—A=+—HEER® 4,160 4,160

No impairment losses have been recorded against balances
outstanding during the year with key management personnel, and
no individually assessed impairment allowance been made on the
above balances at the year end.

The Bank’s policies for lending to related parties take into account
the requirements under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and the
guidelines of the HKMA. The Group sets internal limits (individual
and aggregate group limits for individual, group, secured and
unsecured exposures) and carefully monitors exposure to related
parties, whether individual or corporate, and takes the necessary
measures to control the risk of connected lending. Approvals are
made by the Credit Committee, the Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director and/or the Executive Credit Committee.

Fubon Bank = #4817
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

42,

B ERE M

ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 4. EFRERERRZEE
The following assets have been pledged as collateral for own liabilities at THEEERREMARIERESABEERRT
the end of the reporting period: LAEHA
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Secured liabilities [REiEN=E 11,027,966 11,719,234
Assets pledged: EEHEE :
Trading assets BIERGRGEE 1,846,823 1,361,802
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEeREE 9,520,768 10,784,252
Held-to-maturity investments FEEEEE 122,612 -
11,490,203 12,146,054
The following balances with banks have been pledged as collateral for THRITEBERRERRIEAITE T BRE
margin deposits of derivatives at the end of the reporting period: STEFIHE G T LKA -
2017 2016
—E 5 T—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHT
Margin accounts for derivative contracts PTETESANRE KRS KA 157,853 192,870
These transactions are conducted under usual and customary terms. E3 G TIRB R R B &= °
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. BIERAKRER

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to and
its management and control of risks, in particular, the primary risks
associated with its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk: losses resulting from customer or counterparty default
and arising from credit exposures in all forms, including settlement
risk.

- Market risk: exposures to market variables such as interest rates,
exchange rates and equity markets.

- Liquidity and funding risk: risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when due, or that it is unable, on an ongoing
basis, to borrow funds in the market on an unsecured, or even
secured basis at an acceptable price to fund actual or proposed
commitments.

- Operational risk: risk arising from matters such as non-adherence
to systems and procedures or from frauds resulting in financial or
reputation loss.

REP2FBEASE A EEE 2 RSNk ESZE
Rk B RENZEN  FHERERAS
MTABBZEIE2AR

-  [EERAR: EPERZHFERFAM
BEELNEAR  UAREEREER
B BIEEERR -

-  mBRER: TSEHRR - flEFx -
PER MR o

- nBESLBERR  AEREREEN
REEEHERITNREE - HEER
BETS EABERSESATEAD
FRARABRXZEREAED  HEUR
ERREZEAEREMFENESHE

B e
- Z2ERAR: ARKRETHEREFEE

TR 5| BUZ U 3 il B B B k2
BIBMSI B2 AR -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and
measure these risks, to set appropriate risk limits as derived from its risk
appetite statements and risk appetite indicators and control measures,
and to monitor the risks and limits continuously by means of reliable and
up-to-date management and information systems. These policies and
procedures, including limit excess follow-up procedures, are distributed
to the relevant risk taking and risk management units for execution
and monitoring. Regular training courses are conducted in order to
ensure that all staff are familiar with the key principles of the Group’s
code of conduct. The Group continuously modifies and enhances its
risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and best practice risk management processes. Internal auditors
also perform regular audits to ensure compliance with the Group’s
policies and procedures.

The Group has established an organizational structure such that risk
management functions are independent of risk taking units. The risk
management functions independently provide key risk information,
including asset quality, liquidity profile, capital adequacy ratio and the
risk exposures, and limit monitoring results to the Risk Committee of the
Board (“RC”) and to senior management on a regular basis.

(@) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss in the event that the
Group’s customers or counterparties fail to fulfil their obligations to
the Group. It arises mainly from loans and advances, debt securities
held and counterparty credit risk arising from derivative contracts
entered into with customers or counterparties. It can also arise from
trading and treasury activities.

R EE @)

ZKE.E LA EBUCE RIZ T AR RE 2%
- HlIEEE 2R BRE(ERBAZR
i%&ﬂ ARG HE AR EER) R b - AR
REAEREECEBREMAGBEREEZS
B RPRFE o ZEFBRANEF (BIEBEHERE
FF)E R %G BEE B AENRREEEN
BMATMESE o 7N B E HR 2R 935 o) R A2 DA AR
FiE B THABAREETATRIMEERRA -
N ER B T ET S B B N ok B R B B IR IR R R
o ARG C EmEREERBREERERE
M o NEZEREN I E B E T B IR ARF S
REBEERRERF

AEEDEABRE  ERREEREEBY
RERAEER - ERERBETRBIRE
EZeRBZEeNSREREERHEBRRRE
S(BEREEEXR RIESHN  EXRRE
TER) AR REEERIAER -

(@) FERRERE

FERRERAAEETEFIRZHFR
ﬁd@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@Z%?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ‘%}%
BEOER - EEERNERKRBRK -
RHEBESMAREFPRXFEFIIL
TETRAGHNELENRIHFEER

% o MARRNE B RITEEE) -

The Group manages credit risk through a framework of controls to REBEFBE %‘ EREEREE A
ensure credit risk taking activities are based on sound principles WRELAREE Z/Eﬁbgﬁém = E’\J%

and in line with the overall business objectives of the Group. It has
established a set of credit policies and procedures which define
credit risk taking criteria, credit approval authorities delegated
from the Board of Directors (“Board”), credit monitoring processes,
credit rating and scoring systems and loan impairment criteria.

The Board has delegated credit approval authorities to the following
committees in descending order of authority: the Executive Credit
Committee, the Credit Committee and the Wholesale Credit
Committee.

The Executive Credit Committee serves as the credit committee of
the Board to review and approve credits that require the approval
of the Board. In addition, it approves the Group’s credit policies
and credit risk profile, taking into consideration relevant law and
regulations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

The Credit Committee is a management level committee that
provides management oversight of the Group’s credit risk
management. It ensures that the Group has in place an effective
credit risk management framework and that its credit risks are
within the credit policies and credit risk profile as specified by the
Board or its delegated committees. The Credit Committee reviews
and endorses credit policies and credit risk profile for the Executive
Credit Committee’s approval, and reviews and approves credit
related guidelines. It also conducts on-going review of the market
environment and makes necessary policy recommendations to the
Executive Credit Committee to ensure that the credit risk profile
of the Group is within its risk appetite. The Credit Committee
also reviews and approves credits that are within its authority as
delegated by the Board.

The Wholesale Credit Committee reviews and approves corporate
credits that are within its authority as delegated by the Board.

The credit risk departments, Enterprise Credit Risk Management
and Retail Credit Risk Oversight, provide centralised management
of credit risk for corporate credits and retail credits respectively.
They are responsible for:

- independent evaluation of corporate credit applications;
- monitoring loan portfolio and conducting regular analysis;

- managing problem corporate credits to achieve the highest
recovery;

- recommending loan classification, individual impairment and
charge-off; and

- reporting to the Credit Committee and Executive Credit
Committee regularly on aspects of the loan portfolio.

Compliance reviews are conducted by an independent unit on
an ongoing basis to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, standards, guidelines and codes of practices. The
internal audit function of the Group is an independent appraisal
function set up with the primary objective of evaluating the internal
control system and compliance with laws, regulatory guidelines and
internal control policies.

Credit risk limits are set at different levels, including portfolio and
individual customer levels, taking into consideration various factors
including market situation, capital requirement and the returns.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE et

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

Credit risk management procedures are designed to promote
early detection of customer, industry or product exposures that
require special monitoring. Overall portfolio risk is monitored on
an on-going basis. Regular risk management reports covering
information on large exposures, country exposures, industry
exposures, loan quality and loan impairment level are submitted to
the CC, ECC and RC.

Specific policies and measures to address different kinds of credit
related activities are set out below:

(1)

(i)

Institutional Banking

Credit risk from Institutional Banking is managed by
conducting thorough credit evaluation, credit mitigation
through collateral and guarantee, internal credit rating system
and post-approval monitoring system. Subject to the size of
the credit, value of collateral and the internal credit rating of
the customer, different levels of credit approval authority are
required. Credit decisions take into account facility structure,
tenor, repayment ability of the obligor and credit mitigation
through collateral and guarantee.

The Group has established limits for credit exposure to
individual industry and customer groups, regardless of
whether the credit exposure is funded or non-funded. The
Group also undertakes ongoing credit review and monitoring
at several levels. The relevant policies and procedures
take into account the rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance, regulatory requirements of the HKMA and best
market practices.

Retail Banking

Credit risk from Retail Banking is product driven, arising from
retail loan products such as credit cards, unsecured personal
loans, merchant receivable financing, mortgage loans and
loans secured by wealth management products. Because
of the homogeneous nature of these products, credit risk
management is primarily based on statistical analyses of
risks with respect to different types of product, collateral and
customer. The Group determines product terms and desired
customer profiles on a regular basis by developing, validating
and fine-tuning internal scorecards and stress testing models.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Counterparty credit risk

Unlike on-balance sheet instruments, where the credit risk
is generally represented by the principal value of loans or
other financial instruments, credit risk for counterparties of
derivatives is the positive replacement cost together with
an estimate for the potential future exposure from changes
in market value. These credit exposures are managed as
part of the overall credit limits to the counterparties. The
credit risk exposure on derivatives is disclosed in Note 17(b)
to these financial statements. The Group uses the current
exposure method for the purpose of providing capital for such
counterparty exposures.

Wrong way risk occurs when the credit exposure to a
counterparty is adversely correlated with the credit quality of
that counterparty. Credit exposures and potential losses may
increase as a result of adverse change in market conditions.
The Group has set up policies and procedures to control
wrong-way risk.

Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit risk
involved in extending loans to customers. These transactions
are, therefore, subject to the same credit application,
portfolio management and collateral requirements as for loan
transactions.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
geographic, economic or industry factors similarly affect
groups of customers or counterparties whose aggregate
credit exposure is material in relation to the Group’s total
exposures. The Group’s financial risk exposure is diversified
by customer group, industry and product, but is concentrated
in Hong Kong.

Analysis of credit risk concentration of respective financial
assets is disclosed in Notes 15 to 20.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIS MY EE
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BKEBREE @)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) () FERRBER @

154

(vi) Credit risk mitigation

The Group’s credit evaluation focuses primarily on the
obligor’s repayment ability from its cash flow and financial
condition. In addition, the Group employs various credit
risk mitigation techniques such as appropriate facility
structuring, posting of collateral and/or third party support as
well as transfer of risk to other third parties, which form an
integral part of the credit risk management process. There
is immaterial credit and market risk concentration within the
credit risk mitigations used by the Group. The most commonly
used credit risk mitigation measures are provided below:

Collateral

The Group holds collateral against its credit exposures to
customers mainly in the form of cash deposits, marketable
securities, mortgage interests over properties and guarantees.
The Group also has in place policies and procedures that
govern the assessment, acceptance and the periodic
valuation of the collateral. Collateral taken to secure credit
exposures is revalued periodically ranging from daily to
annually depending on the type of collateral. For treasury
operations, collateral management is based on daily marked-
to-market positions.

Master netting agreements

Collateral generally is not held over credit exposures to banks,
except for securities held as part of reverse repurchase and
securities borrowing activities. However, where applicable,
the Group manages its credit exposures to banks by entering
into master netting arrangements whenever it is appropriate
and feasible to do so. The netting arrangement results in the
settlement of counterparty exposure on a net basis in the
event a default occurs.

The Group’s preferred agreement for documenting derivative
activity is the ISDA Master Agreement which covers the
contractual framework within which dealing activity across
a full range of over-the-counter derivative products is
conducted and contractually binds both parties to apply
close-out netting across all outstanding transactions covered
by such agreement if either party defaults or upon the
occurrence of other pre-agreed termination events.

It is also common for the Group to execute a Credit Support
Annex with counterparties in conjunction with the ISDA Master
Agreement to mitigate the market risk inherent in derivative
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE e

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

42, BiERESEE (a)
(a) FERBERE@

SRR IEE R (&)
TREAHZER iR E ER
SHIAKBREEE -

(vi)  Credit risk mitigation (continued) (vi)
The following table sets out the carrying amounts of
recognised financial instruments that are subject to the above

agreements.
Gross
Gross amount of
amounts of recognised  Net amounts
financial financial of financial
instruments  instruments  instruments
inthe off-set in the in the Related
consolidated consolidated consolidated financial
statement of statement of statementof instruments
financial financial financial that are
position position position not offset  Net amount
$RTH CHHSMIA SRIA
REAH% REEHE  RGaEH
D iES WS AR REHH
ioptl BANAE WEE FAHLRIA BHE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
As at 31 December 2017 R-E—t&+=A=+-H Thzn TiEx TR TR TR
Financial assets TREE
- Exchange rate derivatives -ER{TETE 26,834 - 26,834 15,221 11,613
- Interest rate derivatives -FIRHTETE 207,599 - 207,599 42,027 165,572
234,433 - 234,433 57,248 177,185
Financial liabilities 2RAR
- Exchange rate derivatives - ERfATA 65,526 - 65,526 15,221 50,305
- Interest rate derivatives - MEfAETA 125,129 - 125,129 42,027 83,102
- Equity derivatives - REMETE 368 - 368 - 368
191,023 - 191,023 57,248 133,775
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WIS MY EE
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BIEEKRERE )
(@) Credit risk management (continued) () FERRBER @
(vi) Credit risk mitigation (continued) (i) JRIEEERERE &)
Gross
Gross amount of
amounts of recognised  Net amounts
financial financial of financial
instruments instruments instruments
inthe  off-setin the in the Related
consolidated  consolidated  consolidated financial
statement of ~ statementof  statement of instruments
financial financial financial that are
position position position not offset Net amount
SRMIA BHHESRIA SRIA
REEUBR REEHMBEMRR  RNEEHBRK REHH
RENEE REINEE RENFE FEEBIA FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2016 RZZE—R~E+ZRA=1—H THL TEL TAT THL AL
Financial assets PHEE
- Exchange rate derivatives -ERHETE 67,823 - 67,823 27,250 40,573
~ Interest rate derivatives - FIRTETE 156,075 - 156,075 71,351 84,724
223,898 - 223,898 98,601 125,297
Financial liabilities EREE
- Exchange rate derivatives - EEfTETE 124,514 - 124,514 27,250 97,264
- Interest rate derivatives -FIRHTETE 256,231 - 256,231 71,351 184,880
- Equity derivatives -BREFETE 116 - 116 - 116
380,861 - 380,861 98,601 282,260
Other credit risk mitigation measures HiREEERBIEE
The Group may also employ other types of credit mitigation, AEENFERAERRRERESHM
such as guarantees and letters of credit, mainly for corporate HRNEEREAR TZARR
exposures. As the value of these types of collateral is BEERE - ARZEERAER
conditional upon other credit related factors, their financial uuﬁfﬁﬁlx)&ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%*ﬁ AEE -
effect has not been quantified. wEEtE HM 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIRESRE e

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42.

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

R EE @)
(a) EERRERE @

(vii) RE1EE R
RBEPRFSOEERR (T
REE 2 ERERRREMER
BRI REEARMBRRARAS
B MEENREAIREEFRZ
REE - SAMBRRE - KRR
BERAENEBAEERRNRZS

(vii) Maximum exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period without taking into consideration any
collateral held or other credit enhancements is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. A summary of the maximum exposure to credit

risk for the various components of the consolidated statement EEEEmT -
of financial position, contingencies and commitments is as
follows:
2017 2016
—E=—+tF —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Credit risk exposures relating to HEERERALERBC
on-balance sheet assets: EERE -
Cash and short-term funds BekEHES 5,133,534 6,019,614
Balances with banks and SR1T A 3 ] Hofth & Bl E
other financial institutions 7S 558,348 3,264,233
Trading assets RIERSRABEE 1,846,823 2,310,246
Financial assets designated at T8 AiRiBiE e DA Rt
fair value through profit or loss NRTEBEZEREE - 39,226
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTA 705,165 753,244
Advances to customers less BFEERRRERE
impairment allowances 47,583,317 43,318,839
Trade bills HEEZE 880,255 230,137
Accrued interest and other assets AR E R EMEE 1,425,869 1,086,407
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEHESMEE 31,699,251 30,891,937
Held-to-maturity investments BHEIEEE 1,561,796 1,549,884
Credit risk exposures relating to HEEREXRINEL BB
off-balance sheet items: EERE -
Financial guarantees and other MR REMEERE 2
credit related contingent liabilities SKARBE 888,590 393,866
Loan commitments and other BRGRIEREMIEEER 2
credit related commitments EIE 27,847,342 25,994,137
120,130,290 115,851,770
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B R 5 BT 5
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BIEEKRERE )
(a) Credit risk management (continued) () EERBRER @
(viii) Credit quality of loans and advances (viii) EHREXZEEEE
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, no loans and advances RZBE—tFR=ZT—X~F+=A
to banks were impaired. The credit quality of advances to =+—H  RRTAERDZER
customers can be analysed as follows: FERVERE RMBEFELZE
RZEEERAISNAT :
2017 2016
—E—tF T —REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FHT
Neither past due nor impaired NP 48 260 HR SRV B 47,318,372 42,711,650
Past due but not impaired £ 8 8B I # R E 366,672 531,665
Impaired 2 RE 187,304 334,282
47,872,348 43,577,597
Of which: He o
Gross loans and advances to customers A& B 5% H i 7 £ 80 B sl R B 2 5 30
that are neither past due nor impaired & & 4458
— Grade 1: Pass -4 BA 47,124,617 42,310,564
- Grade 2: Special mention -FB & FE@T 193,755 401,086
47,318,372 42,711,650
The Group classifies advances to customers in accordance AEBEREARASEBDERMAK
with the loan classification system required to be adopted for N2 ERP RGN ERBELETETT
reporting to the HKMA. par Ik
The ageing analysis of advances to customers that are past MEREEFEEmME BBl ERHE
due but not impaired is as follows: ERBRER DA ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF T—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET FHT
Gross loans and advances to customers [A]% F #% H ifi 2 i 218 3 R E 2
that are past due but not impaired BERNERAEE
— Overdue 3 months or less - @E=EAUT 364,879 525,936
— Overdue 6 months or less but — B HAZSE A A T
over 3 months =@EANE - =
— Overdue 1 year or less but — B — F AT
over 6 months NEA B E 1,793 5,729
366,672 531,665
Loans and advances that would be past due or impaired had R=ZFT—+tF+=-A=+—8"
the terms not been renegotiated amounted to HK$15,119,000 WER T TEHREFNAE @
as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$10,872,000). MG ERBECERRERESEA
15,119,000 7L ( = & — X F ¢
10,872,000/ 7T) °
158 Fubon Bank & #8R1T



42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERE M

42, BiERESEE (a)
(a) FERBERE@

(ix) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and

advances

Credit risk that arises from investments in financial assets or
debt securities is managed in the same way as the Group
manages its credit risk under corporate lending, with the
exposure to the issuer controlled under the overall lending
limit to the customer group. Analysis of debt securities by
credit rating designation at 31 December, based on Standard

& Poor’s ratings or their equivalents, is as follows:

AAA

AA- to AA+
A- to A+
Lower than A-
Unrated

AAA
AA-EAA+
A-EA+
A-LATR

(x) BEAREXUIC 2HEEZ
SEEZ
AEEREREAEAREEEERR
HRAZAAEREMEENEREZ
HFREEEZEERRE - B#ITAR
AEREFARNZERNEBEER
BXEGRR - AREEBR 2
AIRRESHEZIREERE
EREETREEBBZLSR TR
=T —R#ETZHWET :
2017
—E—tF
Available-
for-sale Held-to-
Trading financial maturity
assets assets investments Total
FEXS AftHE BE
AREE SREE DR E B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET THERT FTERT
- 3,680,994 - 3,680,994
1,846,823 5,733,926 507,835 8,088,584
- 16,523,957 819,575 17,343,532
- 4,390,793 - 4,390,793
- 1,369,581 234,386 1,603,967
1,846,823 31,699,251 1,561,796 35,107,870
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B ERE MIRE
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BKEBREE @)
(@) Credit risk management (continued) () FERRBER @
(ix) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and (ix) BEAREFUINC ZHEEL
advances (continued) 1EEEZEE)
2016
—T R
Financial
assets
designated Available-
at fair value for-sale Held-to-
Trading through financial maturity
assets profit or loss assets  investments Total
BERBRA
B AR B
FER S NYEE AIHHE SES
ReEE <ZoRBEE SREE F IR A k|
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THAT THT FAET FAET FAET
AAA AAA - - 3,115,908 - 3,115,903
AA- to AA+ AA-EAA+ 2,310,246 = 9,327,794 659,133 12,297,173
A-to A+ A-EA+ = - 13,233,673 735,661 13,969,334
Lower than A- A-LAT = 39,226 4,597,349 155,090 4,791,665
Unrated TR = = 617,218 = 617,218
2,310,246 39,226 30,891,937 1,549,884 34,791,293
There were no overdue debt securities of the Group as at REBR - Z—+F+_-_A=+—
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). AT ABEERHERES(=ZF
—REF ) -
(x) Collateral and other credit enhancements (x) BB REME BB
An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other credit MEeRMEEMEA KR REM
enhancements held against financial assets is as follows: FEERAEmZEHAATEEED
T~
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
Fair value of collateral and other RTINERMEEMSTE 2 BT LR
credit enhancements held against HibfZERAER AT EE -
financial assets that are:
— Neither past due nor impaired - WS AR E 90,975,520 102,080,134
— Past due but not impaired - B AR AR E 1,194,530 1,518,187
— Impaired - 2RE 84,525 185,122
92,254,575 103,783,443
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(xi) Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained

During the years 2017 and 2016, the Group did not obtain any
assets by taking possession of collateral held as security.

As at 31 December 2017, total repossessed assets and
assets acquired under lending agreements of the Group
amounted to HK$40,700,000 (2016: HK$8,700,000).

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with
the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
Repossessed property is classified in the consolidated
statement of financial position within other assets.

(b) Market risk management

Market risk arises on all market risk sensitive financial instruments,
including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity and other
derivative instruments, as well as from the statement of financial
position or structural positions. The Group transacts in the money
market, foreign exchange market, equity market and capital market
giving rise to market risk exposures. Positions are taken as a result
of the execution of customers’ orders, and market making activities,
and offsetting transactions taken in order to hedge the Group’s
open position. The Group does not engage in significant proprietary
trading.

The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive
exposure of earnings and equity to loss and to reduce the Group’s
exposure to the volatility inherent in financial instruments.

The Board reviews and approves policies for the management of
market risks including dealing authorities and limits. The Board
has delegated the responsibility for ongoing general market risk
management to the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”). This
committee articulates the interest rate view of the Group and
decides on future business strategy with respect to interest rates. It
also reviews and sets funding policy and ensures adherence to risk
management objectives.

The Group has also established clear market risk policies, including
limits, reporting lines and control procedures, which are reviewed
regularly and approved by the Board. Market risk is managed within
various limits approved by the Board. These limits are determined
for each financial instrument and include limits on product volume,
gross and net positions, position concentrations, mark to market
limits, stop loss limits and risk position limits. These limits are
reviewed and endorsed by ALCO and approved by The Board at
least annually. The regular limit monitoring is performed daily and
the result is reported to ALCO members. The risk exposures are
also reported to the RC at least monthly.
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42, BiERESEE (a)

(a)

(b)

SERMEE s
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BKEBREE @)
(b) Market risk management (continued) (b) MIZEBERE )

162

The sale of derivatives to customers as risk management products
and the subsequent use of derivatives to manage the resulting
position is an integral part of the Group’s business activities. These
instruments are also used to manage the Group’s own exposures
to market risk as part of its asset and liability management process.
The principal derivative instruments used by the Group are interest
and foreign exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily
over-the-counter derivatives. The Group also purchases exchange
traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivatives positions have
been entered into to meet customer demand and to hedge these
and other positions.

One of the tools used by the Group to monitor and limit market risk
exposure is Value-at-risk (VAR). VAR is a technique that estimates
the potential losses that could occur on risk positions as a result
of movements in market rates and prices over a specified time
horizon and to a given level of confidence. The calculation uses the
historical simulation method as the means to estimate the statistical
confidence level.

The VAR technique is only effective for potential loss events which
are not correlated. The Group therefore augments its VAR limits
with other positions and sensitivity limit structures. Additionally, the
Group applies a wide range of sensitivity analysis and stress testing,
both on individual portfolios and on the Group’s consolidated
positions to assess the potential impact on the Group’s earnings as
a result of extreme movements in market prices.

(i) Sensitivity analysis of market risk exposures
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Trading market risk R 55 R E
Currency risk B mE bk

At 31 December 2017, if Hong Kong Dollar had strengthened
by 0.5% against other currencies, with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$5,480,000 lower (2016: HK$560,000 lower).

Conversely, if Hong Kong Dollar had weakened by 0.5%
against other currencies, with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$5,480,000 higher (2016: HK$560,000 higher).

Interest rate risk

The Group measures trading book interest rate risks through
Present Value of Basis Point (PVBP). PVBP is a sensitivity test
to measure the potential profit or loss fluctuation on interest
rate positions upon a basis point movement.

The Group adopts a sensitivity test of a 100 basis points
movement. At 31 December 2017 and 2016, 100 basis points
upward or downward movement in interest rate would not
result in a material profit movement.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

(1)

Sensitivity analysis of market risk exposures (continued)
Trading market risk (continued)

Equity risk

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group has no equity
position in its trading portfolio. As such, any movement in the
equity price would have no impact on the Group.

Non-trading market risk

Currency risk

All of the Group’s foreign currency position arises from the
Group’s non-trading activities (e.g. investments, lending
and deposit taking) are captured and transferred to the
Financial Markets Division. The Financial Markets Division
monitors these foreign currency exposures and minimizes
foreign currency asset and liability mismatch by entering into
foreign currency spot and forward transactions. Market Risk
Management Department monitors those outstanding foreign
currency positions on a daily basis and report to the ALCO
regularly.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk primarily results from timing differences
in the repricing of interest-bearing assets, liabilities and
commitments. Interest rate risk is managed by the Financial
Markets Division within limits approved by the Board,
including interest rate gap limits. The Group also uses interest
rate swaps and other derivatives to manage interest rate risk.

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the
deployment of non-interest bearing liabilities, including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well as from
certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Structural interest rate
risk is monitored by the ALCO.

At 31 December 2017, if other market variables including
prime rate were held constant, an increase in HKD market
interest rates of 100 basis points would result in an increase
in earnings over the next 12 months of HK$87.0 million (2016:
HK$62.5 million increase), and decrease in economic value
of HK$17.0 million (2016: HK$2.0 million decrease); while
an increase in USD market interest rates of 100 basis points
would result in a decrease in earnings over the next 12 months
of HK$18.0 million (2016: HK$45.5 million decrease), or an
increase in economic value of HK$7.5 million (2016: HK$63.0
million increase).
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

(1)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis of market risk exposures (continued)
Non-trading market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Conversely, if other market variables including prime rate were
held constant, a decrease in HKD market interest rates of 100
basis points would result in a decrease in earnings over the
next 12 months of HK$87.0 million (2016: HK$62.5 million
decrease), and increase in economic value of HK$17.0 million
(2016: HK$2.0 million increase); while a decrease in USD
market interest rates of 100 basis points would result in an
increase in earnings over the next 12 months of HK$18 million
respectively (2016: HK$45.5 million increase), or a decrease
in economic value of HK$7.5 million (2016: HK$63.0 million
decrease).

Equity risk

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group does not hold
non-trading listed equity securities. As such, any movement in
the equity price would have no impact on the Group.

The Group holds non-trading unlisted equity investments
and uses the net asset value reported by the management
of the investee companies to determine the fair value of the
investment. A sensitivity analysis on the fair value of these
unlisted equity investments is disclosed in Note 39(a)(ii).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on interest rate risk, currency risk and equity risk are
performed on the same basis for both 2017 and 2016.

Analysis of currency risk exposures

The Group’s foreign currency positions arise from foreign
exchange dealing, commercial banking operations and
structural foreign currency exposures. All foreign currency
positions are managed by Financial Markets Division within
limits approved by the Board. Structural foreign currency
positions represent foreign currency investments in an
associate of HK$1,399.4 million as of 31 December 2017
(2016: HK$1,399.4 million). The Group seeks to match closely
its foreign currency denominated assets with corresponding
liabilities in the same currencies.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BB EBREE @)

(b) Market risk management (continued) (b) MEZEMREE®)
(i) Analysis of currency risk exposures (continued) (i) EEE R T ()
The following table indicates the concentration of currency TRIRRBERARZ EERRE
risk at the end of the reporting period: RE :
2017
—E—+tHF
us Chinese Other foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies
(Equivalent in HK$’000) (FRTEHE) Y ARY Hihshi
ASSETS EE
Cash and short-term funds B REHES 1,894,835 420,890 303,077
Balances with banks and RITRIZE R H St
other financial institutions AR A5 85 - 558,348 -
Derivative financial instruments MTESRMTA 227,053 18,797 4,759
Advances to customers less EEEIURBERE
impairment allowances 9,808,821 902,685 444,265
Trade bills BERE 864,495 15,760 -
Accrued interest and other assets  FEETFI B & H A& E 682,107 213,711 74,092
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEESREE 19,383,197 1,048,089 9,803,738
Held-to-maturity investments BRI E 1,561,796 - -
Interests in associates N o £ - 2,390,809 -
Spot assets HEEE 34,422,304 5,569,089 10,629,931
LIABILITIES =N
Deposits and balances of banks RITEZEREM SR
and other financial institutions i3 RS N7 5,739,641 15,610 5,368,247
Deposits from customers BEFER 17,019,351 2,614,011 3,573,821
Certificates of deposit issued BEEITHERE 703,015 - -
Debt securities issued BRITEKES 779,454 - -
Derivative financial instruments PTESMTA 191,804 17,848 2,076
Other liabilities HittafE 629,236 217,565 83,363
Subordinated notes issued BRITERERE 1,557,472 - -
Spot liabilities HEEE 26,619,973 2,865,034 9,027,507
Net on-balance sheet position EEABRAEEFEHE 7,802,331 2,704,055 1,602,424
Off-balance sheet position EEABRINEEE
Foreign exchange derivative contracts SNEST 44 4 (4,831,622) (260,294) (1,547,032)
Net aggregate position HWERRE 2,970,709 2,443,761 55,392
Credit commitments and UNEEEZEERER
other contingent liabilities in HitsRREE
foreign currencies 1,218,926 80,900 54,858
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BB EBREE @)

166

Fubon Bank = #4817

(b) Market risk management (continued) (b) MEZEMREE®)
(i) Analysis of currency risk exposures (continued) (i) EEE R T ()
2016
ZE—RF
us Chinese  Other foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies
(Equivalent in HK$’000) (FHTEE) e AR H ANt
ASSETS EE
Cash and short-term funds RekEHES 3,767,128 171,428 286,379
Balances with banks and RITEZE R EAD
other financial institutions SRR 2,462,054 367,650 164,529
Financial assets designated at 5 E ARBIE IS IA R
fair value through profit or loss REEEZEREE 39,226 = -
Advances to customers less EEEIRBERE
impairment allowances 6,127,819 733,980 141,022
Trade bills BEEE 76,681 130,978 22,478
Accrued interest and other assets  JEETH 8 & H A&7 674,648 20,814 73,592
Available-for-sale financial assets At EemEE 17,045,729 1,350,049 9,982,265
Held-to-maturity investments BEIHKE 1,649,884 = -
Interests in associates i ANE ol E = 2,129,493 =
Spot assets HEEE 31,743,169 4,904,392 10,670,265
LIABILITIES =N
Deposits and balances of banks IRITIRIZE R H M & mi s
and other financial institutions ZTER R 3,633,965 - 7,006,225
Deposits from customers BEFER 14,686,464 2,762,194 3,597,205
Certificate of deposit issued BEEITHERE 155,090 = =
Debt securities issued BRITEKES 421,847 - -
Other liabilities HitafE 273,325 19,896 84,105
Subordinated notes issued BRITERERE 1,544,304 = -
Spot liabilities HE&E 20,714,995 2,782,090 10,687,535
Net on-balance sheet position EEEBERABEFE 11,028,174 2,122,302 (17,270)
Off-balance sheet position EEABRINEEE
Foreign exchange derivative contracts SNEST 4 & 4 (10,804,614) (20,950) 8,769
Net aggregate position BERTE 223,560 2,101,352 (8,501)
Credit commitments and DINBHEZEERER
other contingent liabilities in HithRAREE
foreign currencies 214,822 62,144 68,890
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Market risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of interest rate risk exposures

The following tables indicate the effective interest rates for the
relevant periods and the mismatches of the expected interest
repricing dates for interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of the reporting period. Actual repricing dates may differ
from the contractual dates owing to prepayments and the

exercise of options.

B ERE M

42, BiERESEE (a)

(b)

MG ERERE &)

(i) FIE R W
TRITNBEMRABREERS
ERERABRE 2 ERA X LR EH
MBERIER A 28R - BXNTA
NRTERE  ERSIEREH
EEZNE) SIS

2017
E-tf
Average 3 months
effective or less Over Over Non-
interest (include 3 months 1 year Over interest
rate Total  overdue) to1year to5years 5 years bearing
@A
4 AT (B Z@ANLE -t
ERAE aE  Ands) 2-% 2nf  EENE THE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TiER T#Ex THx T#Ex THx
ASSETS BE
Cash and short-term funds ReRRHES 1.81% 5,133,534 4,213,925 - - - 919,609
Balances with banks and ROFAERLD
other financial institutions SREBES 415% 558,348 558,348 - - - -
Trading assets FERSRGEE 0.56% 1,846,823 1,747,180 99,643 - - -
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4£8®T A& N/AFER 705,165 - - - - 705,165
Advances to customers less EPERRAERE
impairment allowances 3.12% 47,583,317 46,232,931 891,169 426,935 2,670 29,612
Trade bills HEZE 2.25% 880,255 788,149 92,106 - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ A[{tHESREE 1.63% 32,243,660 10,751,057 2,071,416 15,454,736 3,420,042 546,409
Held-to-maturity investments BERIHKRE 413% 1,561,796 - - 1,561,796 - -
Other assets HiEE 3.94% 7,971,304 66,926 855 - - 1,903,523
98,484,202 64,358,516 3,155,189 17,443,467 3,422,712 10,104,318
LIABILITIES 8f
Deposits and balances of banks ~ $FTREREM S EREEL
and other financial institutions FRRkiEH 1.91% 11,207,295 11,139,340 - - - 67,955
Deposits from customers ZTERER 1.05% 62,067,793 52,376,365 9,257,272 15,500 - 418,656
Trading liabilities RHEET AR 0.56% 1,846,819 1,846,819 - - - -
Certificates of deposit issued BERIFHE 1.94% 3,311,457 912,089 660,423 1,738,945 - -
Debt securities issued BRETEEES 1.74% 1,179,009 1,179,009 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4£8®I & N/ATER 228,216 - - - - 228,216
Subordinated notes issued BRITKESRE 6.70% 1,557,472 - - 1,557,472 - -
Other liabilities HthGfE NATER 271784 - - - - 2M78M
84,115,902 67,453,622 9,917,695 3,311,917 - 3,432,668
Interest rate sensitivity gap ~ FIRGBEZE (3,095,106) (6,762,506) 14,131,550 3,422,712

Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to-
market values. Note 17(d) includes further information on
the remaining maturity of derivatives, including interest rate
swaps, by notional amount.

FTE S BT AR E B3I - K
H17()RERERLBEHNITE
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B R 5 BT 5
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42, BIEERERE &)
(b) Market risk management (continued) (b) MEZEMREE®)
(i) Analysis of interest rate risk exposures (continued) (iii) U & i 73BT (4%)
2016
ZERE
Average 3 months
effective or less Over Over Non-
interest (include 3 months 1 year QOver interest
rate Total overdue) to1year tobyears 5 years bearing
=A%
4 WT(BE ZEANE -k
ERF|= &g pBds) B-F 2R AFENE TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TiEx Tin TiEx Tin
ASSETS BE
Cash and short-term funds ReREHES 1.41% 6,019,614 4,341,746 - - - 1,677,868
Balances with banks and ROREREM
other financial institutions SRMB LR 2.03% 3,264,233 2,347,655 916,578 - - -
Trading assets BERSRBEE 0.35% 2,310,246 2,210,517 99,729 - - -
Financial assets designated at T ARBERURE
fair value through profit or loss ~~ ATEEZ S REE 7.99% 39,226 39,226 = = = =
Derivative financial instruments 744 BT A NATRER 753,244 = = = - 753244
Advances to customers less EPESRAERE
impairment allowances 2.89% 43,318,839 41,390,118 1,126,971 647,045 4844 149,861
Trade bills HEZE 2.74% 230,137 230,137 - - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets At HELREE 2.57% 31,124,545 12,184,495 4223803 9,583,193 4,898,444 234,610
Held-to-maturity investments FEEERE 413% 1,549,884 - 77,545 1,472,339 - -
Other assets HiEE 3.40% 7,037,700 33,518 1,127 - - 7,003,055
95,647,668 62,777,412 6,445,753 11,702,577 4,903,288 9,818,638
LIABILITIES 8
Deposits and balances of banks ~ R{TRER AL BEEZ
and other financial institutions BFRREH 1.69% 10,976,404 10,944,768 = = = 31,636
Deposits from customers RPER 0.86% 63,563,861 56,080,848 7,004,044 22,882 - 456,087
Trading liabilities RHEET AR 0.30% 2,010295 1,910,598 99,697 - - -
Financial liabilities designated at £ F ARBER R
fair value through profitorloss ~ ATEEZ&BARE 1.28% 406,185 - 406,185 - - -
Certificates of deposit issued BEIFHE 1.46% 2,834,890 1,185,006 990,374 659,510 - -
Debt securities issued BETERES 116% 821,482 399,635 421,847 = = =
Derivative financial instruments 744 BT A NARER 443,714 - - - - 443714
Subordinated notes issued BETRERE 6.25% 1,544,304 - - 1,544,304 - -
Other liabilities gk N/ATER 1,673,899 - - - - 1,673,899
84,275,034 70,520,855 8,922,147 2,226,696 - 2,605,336
Interest rate sensitivity gap HEGBEEE (7,743,443) (2,476,394) 9,475,881 4,903,288
Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to- ST AEMERETR W
market values. Note 17(d) includes further information on F17)REEZESBEOMITE
the remaining maturity of derivatives, including interest rate T A(BFEFI=2E) TR AR 7
swaps, by notional amount. —SEH o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management

The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure sufficient
cash flows to meet all financial commitment and to capitalise on
opportunities for business expansion. This includes the Group’s
ability to meet deposit withdrawals either on demand or at
contractual maturity, to repay borrowings as they mature, to comply
with the statutory liquidity maintenance ratio, and to make new
loans and investments as opportunities arise. The Group maintains
a stable and diversified funding base of core retail and corporate
customer deposits as well as portfolios of highly liquid assets.

It is the responsibility of the Group’s management to ensure
compliance with local regulatory requirements and limits set by the
RC. Liquidity is managed on a daily basis by the Bank’s Funding
Desk unit. The Funding Desk unit is responsible for ensuring that
the Group has adequate liquidity for all operations, ensuring that the
funding mix is appropriate so as to avoid maturity mismatches and
to minimise price and reinvestment rate risk in the case of a maturity
gap, and monitoring relevant markets for the adequacy of funding
and liquidity.

Compliance with liquidity and funding requirements is monitored by
the ALCO and is reported to the RC on a regular basis. This process
includes:

- maintaining balances within relevant regulatory requirements;

- projecting cash flows under various stress scenarios and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary in relation
thereto;

- maintaining adequate intraday liquidity position and assessing
how the intraday liquidity profile will change in conditions of

stress;

- monitoring balance sheet liquidity and loan to deposit ratios
against internal requirements;

- maintaining a diverse range of funding sources with adequate
back-up facilities;

- managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities;

- managing lending commitment to customers within
pre-determined management alert triggers;
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BB EBREE @)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) RBELRAMERE &)

170

- managing debt financing plans;

- monitoring depositor concentration in order to avoid undue
reliance on large individual depositors and ensuring a
satisfactory overall funding mix;

- maintaining funding contingency plans, which identify early
indicators of stress conditions and describe actions to be
taken in the event of difficulties arising from systematic or
other crises, while minimising adverse long-term implications
for the business; and

- managing liquidity on a legal entity and on a group basis.
Intragroup funding transactions are carried out at arm’s
length and treated in the same way as transactions with non-
related third parties and controlled within pre-determined
management alert triggers.

Primary sources of funding

Customer deposits form a significant part of the Group’s overall
funding. The Group places considerable importance on the stability
of these deposits, which is achieved through the Group’s retail
and corporate banking activities and by maintaining depositor
confidence in the Group’s capital strength. In order to lengthen the
duration of the funding, the Group issues certificates of deposit
with different maturities from time to time. Interbank markets are
also accessed for the purposes of providing additional funding,
maintaining a regular presence in local money markets and
optimising asset and liability maturities.

The management of funding and liquidity risk

As part of its liquidity risk management, the Group focuses on
a number of components, including maintaining sufficient liquid
assets, maintaining diversified sources of liquidity, reserving
necessary funding capacity and contingency planning. The Group
manages liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets (e.g. cash
and short term funds and securities) of appropriate quality to ensure
that short term funding requirements are covered within prudential
levels. Debt securities held are marked to the market on daily basis
to ensure their market liquidity. The Group also adopts a funding
strategy that is to achieve diversification of funding by controlling
the concentration of top depositors, wholesale funding and reliance
on foreign exchange swap markets. Moreover, adequate standby
facilities are maintained to provide strategic liquidity to meet
unexpected and material cash outflows in the ordinary course of
business.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

The management of funding and liquidity risk (continued)

In addition to observing the statutory liquidity ratio, the Group has
established different liquidity risk metrics, including but not limited
to the liquidity maintenance ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio, cumulative
cash flow gap, concentration of funding sources and medium-term
funding ratio to measure and analyse its liquidity risks. Financial
Control Division is responsible for measurement and monitoring of
these liquidity metrics and reporting to the ALCO regularly.

Core deposits

The Group monitors the stability of customer deposits by means of
the core deposit ratio, which is the ratio of core deposits to total
customer deposits. The Group categorizes customer deposits into
core deposits after taking into consideration of nature of deposits,
relationship history with customers and stability of customer’s total
balance. An alert trigger level is set on the core deposits ratio which
is monitored by the ALCO.

Loan to deposit ratio

The Group emphasises the importance of customer deposits as
a source of funds to finance lending to customers, and mitigate
against reliance on short-term interbank funding. A limit on the
loan to deposit ratio is established and approved by the RC and
monitored by the ALCO.

Cash flow projection and stress testing

The Group conducts cash flow analysis and cash flow projection
arising from on- and off-balance sheet items over a set of time
horizons on a regular basis to identify funding needs in specific
time buckets. The Group also regularly performs stress tests on
its liquidity position. In the stress test, both on- and off-balance
sheet items with a cash flow impact are considered, with applicable
hypothetical and historical assumptions. Three stressed scenarios,
namely an institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis
scenario, and a combined scenario are adopted with minimum
survival period defined pursuant to HKMA’s Supervisory Policy
Manual guideline “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity
Risk Management”. Stress testing assumptions are reviewed
and approved by the ALCO regularly to ensure their continued
appropriateness.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BB EBREE @)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) RBELRAMERE &)

172

The management of funding and liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity Cushion

The Group maintains a stock of high-quality readily liquefiable
assets as a liquidity cushion against a range of stressed scenarios.
The eligible assets are unencumbered, low credit risk and low
market risk. The liquidity cushion is segregated from debt securities
held for trading purposes. A certain portion of the liquidity cushion
is made up of the most liquid and readily marketable assets
(such as debt securities issued by government or multinational
development banks) that can be easily liquidated to meet funding
needs in the initial phase of liquidity stress.

The size of the liquidity cushion shall be adequate to meet the
Group’s day-to-day liquidity needs and also emergency funding
needs under both normal and stress market conditions. The
minimum required size of the liquidity cushion is determined
with reference to the funding gap generated from the Group’s
regular liquidity stress testing results. Management alert triggers
are established by the ALCO to ensure sufficient size of liquidity
cushion is maintained and appropriate diversification among the
liquidity cushion is achieved. The size and mix of the liquidity
cushion is reviewed by the ALCO regularly.

Contingent liquidity risk

The Group provides customers with committed and standby
facilities. These facilities increase the funding requirements of the
Group when customers drawdown. The liquidity risk associated
with the potential drawdown on committed facilities is factored into
our stressed scenarios and a management alert trigger is set for
these facilities.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

The management of funding and liquidity risk (continued)
Contingency funding plan

The Group has formulated a Contingency Funding Plan (“CFP”)
that describes the Group’s strategy for dealing with any liquidity
problem and the procedures for making up cash flow deficits in
emergency situations. The CFP is designed to be pro-active and
pre-emptive. The Group utilises early warning indicators, which
cover both qualitative and quantitative measures, monitoring
both internal and external factors. Should there be any early
signs of significant impact on the Group’s liquidity position, the
management would be informed for their consideration. Once
the CFP is triggered, a Crisis Management Team, which is led by
senior management, is formed to handle the crisis. Strategy and
procedures in obtaining contingency funding, as well as roles and
responsibilities of parties concerned are clearly stated. The CFP
also includes the analysis of cash flow projections to estimate
potential liquidity needs under stress scenarios.

The CFP is subject to regular testing to ensure its effectiveness and
operational feasibility, particularly in respect of the availability of the
contingency sources of funding listed in it. The CFP is also subject
to review and update on a regular basis to ensure it remains robust
over time. Any changes to the CFP would be approved by the RC.

Moreover, in accordance with the HKMA’s Supervisory Policy
Manual guideline “Recovery Planning”, the Group has established
a Recovery Plan, which has been approved by the Board. The
Recovery Plan helps ensure that the Group is able to recover
quickly from period of severe stress and preserve or restore its
liquidity level. The Recovery Plan is subject to regular, at least
annual, review and update.

Liquidity gaps based on remaining maturity

Detailed analysis of the Group’s liquidity gaps for different time
bands based on the remaining maturity as of 31 December 2017 is
set out in the Note 42(c)(i).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERE M

42, BiERESEE (a)

(c)

REE SR EEE s

B2 RuBE2ERAETE &)
EomEsTa
AEECHERSBES - EPATH
RERSESRENREMRERBR
THRAERSRTRNIZRF - BB AR
B ERED B RANEREE - A&
EERBERER  ETRRBRELEREL
IR BABRERIRIIMERSE - RN
FEMPEHFRBETASREARDESMN
MEEEATE  BEESERMMHEE
ZR - —EMPESRARE - BRI
HEREREERENEREREN &
BERIEEH RSB EEFTARGE
SESHRBEEF  UWRABEIH
BERBE RSREAETEERS
MR Z DM EFTEEBNBE R TE
ERBETHE

HESEESATHETAR - BIE
Hyz RRERITIE - TERIIRES
ZEZHIRLZAIERNE o o - R
ARt BIRE M R EH - ARRER
2 - EERAF B EAEB AR
BREZEEHE

AN - RIBEEE REE BERFMESI Tk
BFt 8 AEEDRIIMEASILES
FEltE - MEFT B A ALREARR
ERE N AAREILRFFEREE 2K
F o EFEIAES (&L —F)EMR
B

REBRYIR 2 REE LD
RZZB—tF+=-A=1+—8  £5H
BREHHIR 2 RENE & R OMFED T
M EE42(c)() °

Annual Report 2017 F4E 4

173



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER S B aE
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42, BiERESEE (a)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) mBELEMEE &)
(i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (i) ffiﬁé%ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ?z BENEE
The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period THHRAR HERERERRES

#RTEAZIEA B Z FISRHARR -

at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity

date.
2017
“E-tE
Over Over Over
imonth 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within ~ butwithin  butwithin  but within Over Undated
Total  on demand 1month 3 months 1 year 5years 5years  or overdue
-fEANLE  =ZEANL —EhE il
a8 HUWER  -ERm  ZERMA  -EMR  BENA ZENL k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR T TR TR T TR T#r T
ASSETS EE
Cash and short-term funds BeREHEs 5,133,534 989,187 4,144,347 - - - - -
Balances with banks and RTRERE
other financial institutions SRMER 558,348 - - 558,348 - - - -
Trading assets BERFBREE 1,846,823 - 999,760 747,420 99,643 - - -
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T&4 BT E 705,165 - - - - - - 705,165
Advances to customers less REETRAEER
impairment allowances 47,583,317 - 11,010,922 3,798,396 5845429 14,020,992 12,854,834 52,744
Trade bills EEEE 880,255 - 323,196 308,264 248,795 - - -
Avalable-for-sale financial assets T HESHEE 32,243,660 - 1,651,704 1499775 3,027,216 22,098,514 3420042 546,409
Held-to-maturity investments BRI ERE 1,561,796 - - - - 1,561,796 - -
Other asssts EEE 7,971,304 - 766,894 269,595 317,559 19,719 - 6,877,587
98,484,202 980,187 18,896,823 7,181,798 9,258,642 37,701,021 16,274,876 8,181,855
LIABILITIES B
Deposits and balances of banks  H1TFAEREMS B
and other financial institutions R R 11,207,295 67,955 956,246 10,183,094 - - - -
Deposits from customers BFER 62,067,793 20,246,425  16,755439 15,793,157 9,257,272 15,500 - -
Trading liabiies REERET AR 1,846,819 - 099757 747420 99,642 - - -

Financial iabilties designated at % ABBIEHE IR
fair value through profit orloss ~—~ ATBEZ4BAR - - - - - - - R

Certificates of deposit issued BRGNS 3,311,457 - - 156,256 860,388 2,294,813 - -
Debt securities issued BETERES 1,179,009 - - 1,179,009 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments ~~ fT4&4BTE 228,216 - - - - - - 228,216
Subordinated notes issued BRTRES 1,557,472 - - - - 1557472 - -
Other liabilities e 2,717,841 - 1,449,424 128,777 157,013 (] - 982,529
84,115,902 20,314,380 20,160,866 28,187,713 10,374,315 3,867,883 - 1,210,745
Net liquidity gap RBEEROFE (19,325,193)  (1,264,043) (21,005,915)  (1,115,673) 33,833,138 16,274,876
Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to- TEESETAETEESIR - K
market values. Note 17(d) includes further information on HI7TAERERESROMITAE
the remaining maturity of derivatives, including interest rate IEF@?E*'JZ?&*ﬁ/HE)%U%%@FEE@}E
swaps, by notional amount. —HEH -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

R EE @)
(c) mBELEMEE &)

42.

() Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity () EFGERS T EEREE
(continued) (&)
2017
“E-tf
Over Over Over
imonth 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within ~ butwithin ~ but within  but within Over Undated
Total  on demand 1month 3 months 1 year 5years 5years  or overdue
-fEANE  =ZEANL —EhE il
L] PEER —-BAR  ZEAMUR —E5R BENR BENE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR T TR TR T TR T#x Thr
Of which: A
Debt securities held* BEERES
- Inclued in trading assets -BABERSBRE
E 1,846,823 - 999,760 747,420 99,643 - - -
- Included in available-for-sale - MATfHE
financial assets SHEE 31,699,251 - 1,651,704 1,499,775 3,027,216 22,098,514 3,420,042 2,000
- Included in held-to-maturity - AR EE R
investments 1,561,796 - - - - 1,561,796 - -
35,107,870 - 2651464 2247195 3,126,850 23,660,310 3,420,042 2,000
Of which: Her:
Certificate of deposits held BEERE
- Included in available-for-sale - AT LE
financil assets SREE 1,639,518 - 97575 342844 200,067 979,032 - -
- Included inheld-to-maturty - HABZEHRE
Investments 156,257 - - - - 156,257 - -
1,795,775 - 97,515 342,844 220,067 1,135,289 - -
Certificates of depositissued ~ ERTHHE
- Stated at amortised cost - REBRR AR 3,311,457 - - 156,256 860,388 2,294,813 - -

*

deposits held.

The amount of debt securities held included certificate of

*

s BB EF 2 EEFT AN

FEFEAARE
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42, BIEERERE &)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) RBELRAMERE &)
() Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity () EFGERS T EEREE
(continued) (%)
2016
ERE
QOver QOver Over
1 month 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within but within but within but within QOver Undated
Total  ondemand 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears  oroverdue
-BANE  =ERNE  -8NE v
#®  HeER -ERR ZEAMA -ENMm RENA RENE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn ThT T T i T T i
ASSETS £E
Cash and short-term funds ReREHES 6,019,614 1,757,546 4,262,068 - - - - -
Balances with banks and ROREREM
other financial institutions SRMELS 3,264,233 - 94 2,337,305 926,834 - - -
Trading assets HERBRREE 2,310,246 - 499885 1,710,632 99,729 - - =
Financial assets designated at & E AR BB MNRM
fair value through profitor loss AT BEZEBAE 39,006 - - 39,006 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments 744 BT E 753,244 - - - - - - 753,244
Advances to customers less REEHRAERR
impairment allowances 43,318,839 955,478 8,386,469 2914708 3,559,413 13,731,150 13,535,659 235,962
Trade bills BEZE 230,137 - 129,824 100,313 - - - -
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 31,124,545 - 1253473 2193794 4587144 17,957,081 4,898,444 234,609
Held-to-maturity investments BRI 1,549,884 = - = - 1,549,884 = -
Other assets EHEE 7,087,700 - 552,405 314,237 25,987 16,058 - 6,129,013
95,647,668 2,713,024 15084218 9610215 9,199,107 33,254,173 18,434,103 7,352,828
LIABILITIES 8
Deposits and balances of banks ~ RATRERE M BME
and other financial institutions R 10,976,404 31638 2434593  8510,173 - - - -
Deposits from customers ZERH 63,563,861 20,094,144 19,753,671 16,689,119 7,004,044 22,883 - -
Trading iabiies XSEET AR 2010295 - 1996 171062 99697 - - -
Financial iabiliies designated at £ AR BE R R
fair value through profitor loss AT BEZEBAE 406,185 - - - - - 406,185 -
Certficates of deposit issued BRTRNE 2,834,890 - - 300000 1520319 1014571 = -
Debt securities issued BEIEHES 821,482 = = 399,635 421847 = = =
Derivative financial instruments 7448 TE 443714 - - - - - - 43714
Suborcinated notes issued BRIREE 1,544,304 - - - - 1,544,304 - -
Other liabties Hfak 1,673,899 - 362380 574200 134,426 10 - 602728
84,275,034 20,125,782 22,750,610 28,183,819 9,180,333 2,581,868 406,185 1,046,437
Net liquidity gap FHELHOTE (17,412,758) (7,666,392 (18,573,604) 18,774 30,672,305 18,027,918
Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to- ST AEEMEFETR W
market values. Note 17(d) includes further information on H1I7ABRERERZSBIMITE
the remaining maturity of derivatives, including interest rate T A(BFERIEEE) TR BR 6
swaps, by notional amount. — &R o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42, MIEREBRER @)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) "BELRRERE®)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity () EFGERS T EEREE
(continued) (%)
2016
E0E
QOver QOver Over
1 month 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within but within but within but within QOver Undated
Total  ondemand 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears  oroverdue
—EANE =AML Lk s

eE  IRER -EAR ZEAMA FMR RENAR RENE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL TEL TR TER TiEL TR TER TiEn

Of which: A
Debt securities held * BEERES
- Inclued in trading assets - RABERS
AREE 2,310,246 - 499,885 1,710,632 99,729 - - -
- Included in financial assets -MAEREA
designated at fair value BRIARBAT
through profit o loss BE SREE 39,26 - - 39,226 - - = -
- Included in available-for-sale - AT HHE
financial assets LREE 30,891,937 - 1,203,473 2,193,794 4,587,144 17,957,081 4,898,444 2,001
- Incluced in held-to-maturity - MAREHERE
investments 1,549,884 - - - - 1,549,884 - -
34,791,293 - 1758358 3943652 4686873 19506965 4,898,444 2,001
Of which: 4
Certificate of deposits held BEERE
- Included in available-for-sale -BATfRHE
financial assets SHEE 1,878,880 - - - 601,861 1,277,019 = -
- Incluced in held-to-maturity - AR EEIER
investments 155,090 - - - - 155,090 = =
2,083,970 - - - 601,861 1,432,109 - -
Certificates of depositissued ~ BEfTEHE
- Stated at amortised cost - REEAK AT 2,834,890 - - 300,000 1,520,319 1,014,571 - -
* The amount of debt securities held included certificate of * Fi#s BH &SR & B E G AR
deposits held. FFERAE o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c)

42, BiERESEE (a)
REE SR EEE s

(i) BEXFIHEELZIITER
BT
NREIEBREHREGHEHA
ZRBBERI M2 AEEERAE
RBEERERIER 2ENRSR
B - TREKBTEEERZERRN
RAMBIRR R &R ARTR
BEHEERRAREMNRZEE R
HRFEREZMERSR(RIE
RITREAE) o

(i) Analysis of non-derivative liabilities by contractual
maturities
The following table sets out contractual cash flow projections
of the Group’s financial liabilities, and off-balance sheet
exposures analysed by the remaining period as at the end of
the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates. The
balances in the tables below will not agree directly to the
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
as the table incorporates all cash flows, on an undiscounted
basis, related to both principal as well as those associated
with all future interest and coupon payments.

178

2017
E-+E
Over Over Over
1month 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within ~ but within  but within  but within Over
Total on demand 1month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years
—-@EANLE =Z@EANLE —ENE
aE  PREY  -EAR ZERMR -FMR  EEMR  EENE
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
Ti#n TR Ti#n TR Ti#n TR TR
Financial liabilities tHEs
Deposits and balances of banks ~ SR{TRE R AL BEE
and other financial institutions 2ER R 11,259,739 67,955 959,300 10,232,484 - - -
Deposits from customers RFER 62,341,528 20,246,427 16,804,732 15,882,020 9,392,822 15,527 -
Trading liabilities RIEETLAE 1,848,500 - 1,000,000 748,500 100,000 - -
Financial liabilities designated at ¥ ARBIER R
fair value through profitorloss ~ AFEE742RARE - - - - - - -
Certificates of deposit issued BRETERE 3,407,963 - 2,673 166,902 903,664 2,334,724 -
Debt securities issued BERTERES 1,181,285 - - 1,181,285 - - -
Subordinated notes issued BETRERE 1,853,679 - - - 96,770 1,756,909 -
Other liabilities & 1,822,547 - 1427,132 320,628 74,689 98 -
83,715,241 20,314,382 20,193,837 28,531,819 10,567,945 4,107,258 -
Off-balance sheet exposures ~ EEEERINAR
- Contingent liabilities -SRRE 888,590 - 888,590 - - - -
- Commitments - I 27,847,342 27,847,342 - - - - -
28,735,932 27,847,342 888,590 - - - -

Fubon Bank = #4817




42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of non-derivative liabilities by contractual

maturities (continued)

Financial liabilities

Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Trading liabilities

Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Certificates of deposit issued

Debt securities issued

Subordinated notes issued

Other liabilities

Off-balance sheet exposures
- Contingent liabilities
- Commitments
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B ERE M

42, BiERESEE (a)
(c) mBELEMEE &)
(i) EHEAFEEELNZIEITER
EDIT (&)
2016
-5k
Over Over Qver
1month 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within -~ but within -~ but within ~ but within Over
Total  on demand 1month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years
—EAKE =@EAME —FuE
wE MEER  —HEAR ZEAMR  —EMR RENR BFNE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
T Tin T Ti#x T Ti#n Tin
SRAR
RORERE SRR
LERREH 11,020,772 31,638 2,441,197 8,547,937 = = =
EPRER 63,756,527 20,004,147 19,793,222 16,752,123 7,094,152 22,883 =
RIEETLAE 2,012,000 - 200,000 1,712,000 100,000 = =
BERRBBRNRE
ALEEZLBAR 540,937 - 120 - 2,966 15,874 521,977
BEIERE 2,900,274 = 1,363 307,844 1546493 1,044,574 =
BEIERES 826,498 = - 400,000 426,498 = =
BRETRERE 1,932,186 - - - 96,048 1,836,138 =
2B E 987,053 - 840,202 80,920 65,821 110 -
83,976,247 20,125,785 23,276,104 27,800,824 9,331,978 2,919,579 521,977
EESBRMER
_SRaE 393,866 - 393,866 - = = -
- 25,994,137 25,994,137 - - - - -
26,388,003 25,994,137 393,866 - - - -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42. BB EBREE @)

180

(d) Operational risk management

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external
events. Given that operational risk is inherent in all business
products, activities, processes and systems, the Group has
developed, implemented and maintained a robust operational
risk management framework to facilitate the timely identification,
effective assessment and mitigation of the risk. Internal controls, an
integral part of a sound operational risk management framework,
are maintained by the departmental operational manuals which
provide guidance on the baseline controls to ensure a sound
management of business and operations.

The RC provides oversight of the risk management of the Group.
With assistance from the Internal Control and Compliance
Committee (“ICC”), the RC regularly reviews the operational risk
framework and approves the risk profiles and the risk management
policies. The ICC also plays an active role to assist the RC in
overseeing operational risk related issues and monitoring the
implementation of improvement plan for risk events identified and
rectifications found in the operational risk management tools,
including Control Self Assessment and Key Risk Indicator.

Business and support units are required to review their procedures
regularly to ensure compliance with the internal control standards
and regulatory requirements. They are also required to work closely
with Operational Risk Management Department and Business
Compliance Department on internal control, regulatory compliance
and operational risk management related activities and initiatives.

Each new product or service introduced is subject to a rigorous
review and approval process where all relevant risks are identified
and assessed by departments independent of the risk-taking unit
proposing the product or services. Variations of existing products
or services are also subject to a similar process. In addition, the
Group maintains business continuity plans and tests contingency
facilities regularly to ensure an ability to operate on an ongoing
basis and limit losses in the event of severe business disruption.

Internal Audit Division and Compliance Department play an
essential role in monitoring and limiting operational risk. Their
foci include evaluating the adequacy of all internal controls
independently, ensuring adherence to operating guidelines
(including regulatory and legal requirements) and making
improvement recommendations pro-actively.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Capital management

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group
as a whole. In addition to meeting the regulatory requirements, the
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately
with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

The Group’s capital management is overseen by the ALCO and
reviewed regularly by the Board. Key tools adopted include capital
budgeting, monitoring, stress testing. An annual capital budget
is prepared during the annual budgeting process to assess the
adequacy of the Group’s capital to support current and future
business activities taking into account projected business growth
and any new business activities. The annual budget is approved
by the Board. Actual capital adequacy is measured and compared
against the approved budget on a regular basis. In addition, regular
stress testing and scenario analysis of major sources of risk faced
by the Group is performed to assess impact on capital adequacy
ratios. The Group’s Recovery Plan ensures that the Group is able
to preserve or restore its capital level during a severe stress period.
The Recovery Plan is subject to regular, at least annual, review and
update.

The principal forms of capital are included in the following balances
in the consolidated statement of financial position: share capital,
reserves, additional equity instrument and subordinated notes
issued. Capital for regulatory purposes also includes the collective
impairment allowance held in respect of advances to customers as
allowed by the Banking (Capital) Rules.

The Group adopts the standardised approach for the calculation of
risk-weighted assets for credit risk and market risk, and the basis
indicator approach for the calculation of operational risk.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of its capital adequacy ratio and there have
been no material changes in the Group’s policy on the management
of capital during the year.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued)

The Bank computes its capital adequacy ratios of the Bank and
certain specified subsidiaries in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. Certain non-
banking financial subsidiaries are also subject to the supervision
and capital requirements of local regulatory authorities. The
Group regularly measures and monitors capital adequacy of these
regulated subsidiaries.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, and were above the
minimum required ratio set by the HKMA.

(f) Transfers of financial assets

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had entered into repurchase
agreements with certain banks to sell available-for-sale financial
assets and held to maturity investments of carrying amounts of
HK$9.52 billion (2016: HK$10.02 billion) and HK$122.6 million
(2016: Nil) respectively which are subject to the simultaneous
agreements (“repurchase agreements”) to repurchase these
financial assets at agreed dates and prices. The consideration
received under these repurchase agreement totalling HK$9,181.1
million (2016: HK$9,708.9 million) was reported as “Deposits and
balances of banks” at 31 December 2017 (Note 26).

As stipulated in the repurchase agreements, there was no transfer
of the legal ownership of these financial assets to the counterparty
banks during the covered period. However, the Group was not
allowed to sell or pledge these financial assets during the covered
period unless both parties mutually agree with such arrangement.
Accordingly, these financial assets were not derecognised from the
financial statements but regarded as “collateral” for the secured
lending from these counterparty banks. Normally, the counterparty
banks could only claim from the collateral when there exists an
event of default on the secured lending.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no outstanding
transferred financial assets in which the Group had a continuing
involvement, that were derecognised in their entirety.

43. IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group is Fubon Financial Holding Co.,
Ltd, which is incorporated in the Republic of China.
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AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES

ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds

Balances with banks and other financial
institutions

Trading assets

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances to customers less impairment
allowances

Trade bills

Accrued interest and other assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments

Interests in associates

Investments in subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Fixed assets

Assets held for sale

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Trading liabilities

Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Certificates of deposit issued

Debt securities issued

Derivative financial instruments

Other liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated notes issued

Total liabilities

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to shareholders
of the Bank
Additional equity instruments

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

Approved and authorised for issue by the
20 March 2018.

Ming-Chung (Daniel) TSAI
B

Director

=
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44. BANK-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44,

B ERE M

MITHBEMRARREREHRER
IN EQUITY
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—NHFE
+=ZA=+—-8 +=-—A=t+—8H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
BE
REREHES 5,133,511 6,019,591
SRTTIR 2 K H At < B A RS 45 20
558,348 3,264,233
BIERXRGRGEE 1,846,823 2,310,246
EEABBBIURBRAFEERZ
CRIEE - 39,226
TESmMITE 705,165 753,244
BEE R ERE
47,575,344 43,306,851
[GEL3: 880,255 230,137
SR E RS E 1,391,110 1,112,779
AHHESREE 32,243,660 31,124,545
ZEERE 1,561,796 1,549,884
REEE N T 2 xS 1,399,442 1,399,442
RETEA TZ&E 81,162 81,162
FEUS KB A Rl FRIE 89,517 9,265
BEEEE 4,100,320 3,770,394
HIELEEE 43,900 42,700
BERTE 97,610,353 95,013,699
=L
RITRIZE R H & gt rg
T 5E -2 11,207,295 10,976,404
BEFEER 62,067,793 63,563,861
REGEETZAE 1,846,819 2,010,295
ETEARBIBRENRMRATFEEZ
=N - 406,185
BBITERE 3,311,457 2,834,890
BBITEKES 1,179,009 821,482
TESBTE 228,216 443,714
HEtEE 2,062,033 1,194,110
FERHI B A RI5RIE 229,703 210,962
EERIRAE 615,337 477,230
BEITREZE 1,557,472 1,544,304
BfERE 84,305,134 84,483,437
ER
[N 4,830,448 4,830,448
i 6,966,974 5,699,814
ANATRR R B A AR SR i 2
11,797,422 10,530,262
FEINRATH 1,507,797 =
R 13,305,219 10,530,262
s kaEReE 97,610,353 95,013,699

Board of Directors on

Robert James KENRICK
HEas

Director

EE

KREEGN T/ \F=ZA_tHBENERE

Raymond Wing Hung LEE
2 9

Director

EF
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B ERE T

44. BANK-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4. BITHBRRRREZBHRER

AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued) (%)
Investment Premises
Share  Regulatory revaluation  revaluation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
®E VES
B RERE  EREE  ERREE S ®REEA B
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHBT T FET FTAET TEL FAET
At 1 January 2016 R-Z—XR"E—A—H 4,830,448 640,152 31,948 2,249,620 2,241,639 9,993,807
Total comprehensive income rEEEEKEEE
for the year - - 48,245 41,204 447,006 536,455
- Profit for the year - KEE S - - - - 427,945 427,945
— Other comprehensive income, -Etn2EkE  Ef e
of which: CE
- Available-for-sale financial -ARHESREE
assets: net movement RESHREEFE
in investment revaluation
reserve = = 48,245 = = 48,245
- Remeasurement of net - BN EEERENERE
defined benefit liability FE = = = = 19,061 19,061
- Premises: net movement - ¥ MEEGEE
in premises revaluation FEE)
reserve = = = 41,204 = 41,204
Transfer (to)/from retained earnings (%) /BE& %M - (112,910 = (51,022) 163,932 -
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+-A=1+—H 4,830,448 527,242 80,193 2,239,802 2,852,577 10,530,262
Investment Premises Additional
Share  Regulatory  revaluation  revaluation Retained equity Total
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings Total instruments equity
i tERE REERRE NEERRER REER f EARAIR B&iE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T T T T T T Thr
At T January 2017 RZE-t%5-f-R 4,830,448 527,242 80,193 2239802 2,852,577 10,530,262 - 10,530,262
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AFE2ENALE - - 433,726 305,992 527,442 1,267,160 - 1,267,160
- Proft for the year - REERF - - - - 534,049 534,049 - 534,049
- Other comprehensive income, of which: - E#i2E Mz - R aiE:
- Avallable-for-sale financial assets: -MHREELHEE:
net movement in investment RAERRETED
revaluation reserve - - 433,726 - - 433,726 - 433,726
- Remeasurement of net defined - BN ERERIAR
beneft iabilty 8 - - - - (6,607) (6,607) - (6,607)
- Premises: net movement in premises - 9% : MEEEE
revaluation reserve BEH - - - 305,992 - 305,992 - 305,992
Transfer (to)/from retained earnings 85(2)/BREAT - (28,254) - (50,449) 78,703 - - -
Issuance of additional equity instruments ~ E{TESMERT A - - - - - - 1,507,797 1,507,797
At 31 December 2017 RIE—+F+-A=+-0 4830448 498,988 513,919 2,495,345 3,458,722 11,797,422 1,507,797 13,305,219
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45. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing these financial statements, certain assumptions and
estimates have been made by management of the Group. The accuracy
of these assumptions and estimates are continuously reviewed by

management with reference to actual results, historical experience
and other factors, including projection of future cash flows and
possible outcomes from future events. Management believes that the
assumptions and estimates made are reasonable and supportable.

Notes 23 and 39 contain information about the assumptions and risk
factors relating to fair value of bank premises and financial instruments.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Impairment losses

Advances to customers

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. Management makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio is
impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future cash
flows. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data
that the payment status of borrowers in a group has adversely
changed. It may also include observable data of local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.
If management has determined, based on their judgement, that
objective evidence for impairment exists, expected future cash
flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to those of the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data.

Management reviews the methodology and assumptions used
in estimating future cash flows regularly to reduce any difference
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

In assessing the need for a collective impairment allowance,
besides factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations, management also considers economic factors.
In order to estimate the required adjustment to the collective
impairment allowance from economic factors, the Group makes
assumptions and judgements to determine the relevant economic
indicators and their relevant weighting based on historical
experience and current economic conditions.

Available-for-sale equity securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below cost. The determination of when a decline in fair
value is significant or prolonged is judgmental by nature so profit
and loss could be affected by differences in this judgment.
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45. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Fair value determination

The Group determines the fair values of financial assets and
liabilities which are carried at fair value based on quoted market
prices whenever possible. If such quoted market prices are not
available or an active market does not exist, the Group determines
the fair values based on internally developed models which make
use of market parameters, including interest rate yield curves,
historical and/or implied option volatilities, currency rates, prices
of the underlying instruments, and the net assets of the underlying
investments. Model assumptions and correlation among these
parameters can affect the estimates of the fair values of these
financial instruments.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity which the Group has a
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity as held-to-maturity
investments. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its
intention and ability to hold such investments till maturity.

If the Group fails to hold these investments to maturity other than in
certain specific circumstances, the Group will have to reclassify the
entire portfolio of held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale.

This would result in held-to-maturity investments being measured at
fair value instead of at amortised cost.

Other accounting estimates

Judgement has been exercised in determining the amount which
may be payable to customers in respect of complaints or legal
claims arising from the sale of investment products and establishing
a reserve included in other liabilities. A charge has been recognised
in profit or loss representing amounts paid and an estimate of future
amounts which could be payable.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group:
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46. EXHERBE-FT-—tH+=A
=t-HLEFEZEHPBEREXR
28] - MERARBREB TR E

BEHEFBREAMA - BESAMAEE
DE THERT R &R » ZFER] KA LERR
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—BIEFEHERE
WA U EH B IRE TR AT THER
SEAME

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 BHR 2 RMK 2T HBENR

BB B E ERFE R

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers

KEEFPE#KZ Wz

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based

payment: Classification and measurement KRG BERT L
of share-based payment transactions R BEBIHS

HKFRS 16, Leases

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments and new standards is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of the
new standards which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. As the Group has not completed its assessment,
further impacts may be identified in due course and will be taken into
consideration when determining whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which transitional approach
to take, where there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.

BB TA

BB BRELRIFE 155

BB R LRIEH 2 55T -
PRI EN

HEYBRELEAFE165 - HE

1 January 2018
—Z2—-N\F—H—H

1 January 2018
—Z2—-N\F—H—H

1 January 2018
—Z2-\F—Hf—A

1 January 2019
—Z-hF—H—H

REBBIENEEREAZSET R ER
IR 2SR AEEBERERMATE
AlWE THE A e BRE M HREKER
TE - ARBHATYENE—THBR T X
it o A SR B i R FER B AT AR o #RAT BE A
BERREREMPE  WHERELEEER
B 5 2 BT SR AN (E T R2 S5 3R E A S SRR (AT T 3
BT (AR ER A FFRERTT ) 2B IAE
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HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial
instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement of financial assets, calculation of impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS
39 for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and
the classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts of the new
requirements on the Group’s financial statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement (a) DERIE
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for EEVBRELEFVRBIESHEEN
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value —EAEXEHEER - TIXFTM()REHE
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other AR~ (2)B B82S A R A FEE X (3)
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows: BAFEEFAELMEZERESTE

o The classification for debt instruments is determined based on .
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets

BB TANDBREEREESH
EENEBEAURBENSHR

and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. If a
debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised
in profit or loss.

For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL regardless of
the entity’s business model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the entity irrevocably elects
to designate that security as FVTOCI. If an equity security
is designated as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that
security will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses
and impairments on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.
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Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that its
financial assets currently measured at amortised cost and FVTPL
will continue with their respective classification and measurements
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification and measurement (continued)

With respect to the Group’s financial assets currently classified
as available-for-sale, a significant portion of debt securities are
expected to be classified as financial assets measured at amortised
cost as these securities are held to collect contractual cashflows.
For equity securities, the Group shall irrevocably elect to designate
them as FVTOCI (without recycling) on transition to HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39,
except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of
that financial liability’s own credit risk to be recognised in other
comprehensive income (without reclassification to profit or loss).
The Group currently does not have financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL and therefore adoption of this new requirement would not
have significant impact to the Group.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 with an expected credit loss model. Under
the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary for
a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure expected
credit losses as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in earlier
recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade receivables and
other financial assets.

Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the requirements relating
to measuring and recognising effectiveness under HKAS 39.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting. The Group believes that
its current hedge relationships will qualify as continuing hedges
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 and therefore it expects that the
accounting for its hedging relationships will not be significantly
impacted.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Impact assessment

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to use
the exemption from restating comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance
of equity at 1 January 2018. Based on assessments undertaken
to date, the total estimated impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 on
the opening balance, net of tax, of the Group’s net assets as of 1
January 2018 is a reduction of HK$175.4 million which represents
the following:

- a decrease of HK$181.8 million resulting from the change
of classification and measurement of financial assets.
This primarily results from the reversal of unrealised gains
currently recognised in the investment revaluation reserves for
available-for-sale financial assets, which would be reclassified
to amortized cost;

- a increase of HK$6.4 million due to the change in the
calculation of impairment losses;

The above adjustment would reduce the Group’s Total Capital Ratio
by 39 basis points.

The actual impact on the opening balance of the Group’s net assets
at 1 January 2018 is subject to changes upon the finalization of
the assumptions, judgements and estimates finally adopted by the
Group.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the
existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue
arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which covers that from construction contracts.
The Group has made a preliminary assessment of the impact of adopting
HKFRS 15 and believes it does not have a significant impact on the
Group’s revenue recognition.
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46. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(l), currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance
leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease
term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases for properties which are currently classified as operating leases.
The application of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the lease. The Group is currently assessing the
impact on the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019.
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